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File Number
Locatlion
Date

Time
statement of
Grade/Status
SSN
Org/Address

WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMERT UNDER ORTH:
afound the micdle to the end of October 1 was talking to a female fron the Nevada
National Guard MP unit that was starioned here. She was very skinny, she was.
white, but very tanned, she had black and gray hair, and she was old, I don’t
remember her rank, but she was made the unit armorer during this time. She told
me that they were the first unit here, and they were ‘the onea who started setting
this place up. She was the oldest female among that unit. She was telling me
about wrlting these journals that talked about all of her experiences here in
irag and tne wrongdoings she wvitnessed (and their cover up) - In theose journals
she said there were killings, torture, yaQu name it she said it. She was
referring to all of the things.that nad been done here. 5he told me thar the
commander and the first sergeant hated her because she would voice opposition ©o
rhem about the treatment of the people. She also told me that she mailed the
journals home {vo a friend or 1o herself) before they could be found so that the
—ommande: could not take them from ner. ' )

In late Octobe~aid that the MP's told her that these two detainees
nad raped a2 14-year-old boy., SO the MP's were nandcuffing the detainees 1in
contorted pesitions Tto each ot ing it look like the twWo detalnees were
having sex with each orher. I old me that the detainees may have

neen naked at the time. She also saxd that the MP’'s made the detainees 1n
jsolation Lake their clothes off and wear women’s underwear. -

{ the e | of October I was Just discussing Uitmbout
now Chere wert Scme bad thinzs going on, as ‘far as t soners are getting

rreatec. Sne iad eah and she told me about a detaine: who had gotten his eye
pusted open. aid that she asked the MP 1ow his eye got busted, and

the H4p repliel that he fell cown.

Wnen 1 returned from leave n the micadl £ Decemb I was eating at the cl
hall at Camp Victory, when ] overhear nd three other people
calking abouf what's going on &t Abu Gharib. He was telling them about th
chings chat the MP's were coing Lo che cdetainees. He said thart he was 10DV ec T

join 1n on cthese things, 50 he gid. The MP'S were using the datainees 2S
practice dummies, like they would shov each other how to knock somecne put
knocking the detaines out. They did this while another detainee would wat:

when the other deltainse woulg sta-T to get scared, the MP’'s would calm him Wi
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and then hit him in some other way. He was also saying that the MP's were telling
him how to hit the detainees so that you didn’t leave a mark, and telling him
what instruments to use 30 that they didn’t leave marks.

Afrer I came back from leave in the peginning cf December I was talking t*

nd she was telling me how the guards would bring the dogs down Lo Lhe
cdells 3nQ use them to scare the detajnees. She rold me that she thought it was
funny because after they would take Lhe dogs awWay, one MP would bark like a dog,
and they would all warch as the detainees would run from him because they thought
there was a dog in the room.

Wwhen the people from my unit came up here to fill slots and act as guards, they
ware Taken on a Tour of the isolation area, when they were down there the MP's
would tell them that they could do whatever they wanted to the detainees. I was
rolz that all they enced up doing i3 yelling at the detainees and make chem do
PT. —told me that he was worried about his so ing exposed Lo
nd of i nd _being e to

ware all
force: they

present for cthat.
are still doin

re npet on the guar

ou know anybody specifically <ho was abusing che detainees?

A. Everytning 1 know 13 what I've nearc, all of these things take place down in
1s0lation or in the broth. . .

¢ Do you w if anyhody has Taken any unauthorized photographs?

A1 knouuhad photo: sf the facility, out not of the detainees. I'm
sure. they were £or 3e timental value. Those photos were on the common drive, and
I was told by my chain of commanc to delete the photos, so I did.

Q. O;dueue: tell yoL :f sne was involved with the abuse of the
detainees’

A- Just being rthere for the dog incacdent. Sne seemed really apathetic every time
1 said anything about it. 5She TRoOughl 1T was really funny to see the detainees
run back Lnteo theirr cells Irom the dogs.

Q: Do you have anything else you wilsh L& agg te this statement? .

A: Every time ] saicd sSomething about how | Jas worried about the trearment of the
gerainees, they would either say., Thy are rne enemy and if I was out there they
would kill me, S0 they didn’t care I'm glad that something 1s finally being
ggpe, 1t's kind of sname ful what’'s beer golng _oOn.

¢. Do you Rave anycohang e.j;s‘ TTTH To 320 to thi: statement?

5% MNo.///END OF STATEMENT
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STATEMENT OF: TAKIH AT: f5“‘7—0 . DATEC Janicas,

2004 CONTINUL

HAVE READ OR HAVE WAD RERD TO ME THIS STATEMENT WHITE
BEGINS ON PAGEL 1 AND ENDS ON « 3. I FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE
STATEMENT MADE BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS5 TRUE. I HAVE INITIALED ALL CORARECTIONS AND HAVE
INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. I HAVE .MADE THIS STATEMENT
FREELT WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT THEEAT OF PUNISHMENT. AND WITHOUT
COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE, OR UNLAWFUL INDUCEMENT.

51 Peraon Mating Stalemenls

Supscribed and swcrn to befcce me, 2 person authorized by law Lo aaminister ocatn
this January 2.. 2004, at Baghoaz. Irag '

—— . =
iSignature of Pzsson Aaminiitering Oarn

3J23RD AILITARY POLICE DETACHMENT (CID) (DSE;

[Tyrpec Neame n! FPersan Aoministering Deth:

ARTIZLE 136 UTmo

[AUCROLLEY CC AQNLIN.3CE” UdEA,

WITNESS

EXHIBIT INITIALS OF DERSON MAXING STATEHENT PAGE 3 ar 5 PAGLS
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FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY

CITE7-TFF-1 (Abu Ghraib) ' 3 June 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

SUBJECT: Change Sheet Records Check

1. 0) On3 June 2004, the undersigned an terviewed
_ LT, USA,; assigned to the S1, 391st Miltary Police Battalion
concerning his knowledge of Military Intclligence personnel involvement in the alleged

detaipee abuses at the Bahgdad Center Corrections Facility (BZCF).

ed detaince abuses

as acting

Company Commander. contact wi did not have any

contact with the other s ily coptact wi but did not discuss
as unable to provide any information

the alleged detainec abuse with
concerning Military Intelhgence personnel involvement in the alieged detainee abuse.

2. (FOUO) All of the MPs rel}

m duty as a result of
were assigned for duty W, i

3. (U) POCisthe undersigned.

Invesugating Officer

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY
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FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY
CJTF7-TFF-1 (Abu Ghraib) 4 June 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

SUBJECT: Change Sheet Records Check

1. (FOUO) On 4 Juns the yndersigned met with following individuals concerning
Change Sheet recor

FC, USA; NC inen [nprocessing
ioné Facility (BCCF), (LT, USA,
assigned to the S1, 391st Miltary Police Battalion. Both individuals cated that the

Facility, Bahgdad Center Correct

Change Sheets records were perishable, that is, the documents arc not stored after use.
The Change Shects are filled out whenever 2 detainee is moved from one location in the
facility to another, the moves are then annotated on the Change Sheets. There are so
many generated that they are destroyed when completely full. There are no Change
Sheets available during the time frame of 15 July 2003 and 31 January 2004.

2. (U) POC is the undersigned.

vestigating Officer

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY
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21 June 2004
MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD:

SUBJECT: Procedure 15 interview o“
~JUNE 2004, R. Fay anmntewiewed
as read h S inee apuse, faiture to

rt that apuse, violation ol the Geneva Convention and Dereliction of Duty)
which he invoked. (DA Form 3881 provided).

. Ml _
Investigating Officer

AGO0D00369

DOD 000457



SWORN STATEMENT -
For & of this form. see AR 19045 the pioponent agenacy is ODCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHORITY: Titta 10 USC Section 301; Tite 5 USC Section 2851; E.O. 9357 dated November 22, 1943 (55N).
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE:  To provide commanders snd law enfarcement oficials with means by which mformation may be accurately entfied

ROUTINE USES: Your social security humbar is uaed as an additionai/anernaie means of idenvfication o facikiate fiing end revieval,
MSCLOSURE: Disciosure of your Social security numbat is voluntary.
SuURE: |

4_ FILE NUMBER

. LOCATION . 2. DATE (rYYYM. . TIME
e | o s W
. MIDOLE NAME 6. SSN el 7. GRADEISTATUS
. - E4/RESERVE
T DRGANIZATION Of ADDRESS .

A COMPANY, 325TH MILITARY INTELLIGENCE BATTALION, DEVENS. MA 01432

WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH

While 1 was deployed in'Iraq, T was assigned to the 325th Military Intelligeace Banalion, 205th Military Intelligeace Brigade,
and | was working ip Abu Ghraib. There way slredy an lragi prison locatedin Abu Guraib acd when US Forces moved into Iraq
they ok control of the prisbn. My job was an inlerrogator while ] was assigned to the prison, T was imerrogatiog legi
derainees, some of them were Syrian Iragis, and 1 also performed inlerpretations of Russiae speaking detainees. “Fach
interrogation was different, my team leader would assign me 2 detaines 0 interrogale and | would periopm planning and
preparation for cach one. When I was ready 1 would call oie of the Miliury Police (MFP) working inside the prisoz, the guards,
would t=]l them the ourcher af the detainee that } wanied to talk 1o and (hey would bring the detainee ioto a ten, for about the -

the prisop. Inside the et or booth with me would be an inlerpretor, an analyst, and mysell. Sometimes there would be two
apalysts, somelimes no inierpretar because the detainee speaks English. When the detainees were brought 10 me they were in
different conditiops. Sometimes | would ask the MPs to bring the detaiper blindfolded somenimes, hancuffed and for e first
couple of weeks they somzumes would be brought without handcufis but then that stopped and they were always brought
handcuffed. I conduced the interrogatinne in different ways, sometmes we uncuffed them, somelimes not, sometimes we let
them stands apd sometines we would let therg sit. )
Q. Were you ever present when any detainee was abused?

A. Yes. when 1 was walkicg through the isolation cells part of the prison, 1 saw prisoners being bandeuffed o each cther naked,

iootball and threw it at the detainees and another MP threw water at the detainees. | had never acen anything like that before. I
only saw this take piace once, It was betwees the middle and the ead of October or the beginning of November. 1saw three or
iour MP Guards in the same arga. There were cight or nine Iragi Police that saw it All the other detainesy appeartd nommal.
Q. Who were the individuals who atused the detainees?

& Toe 'tz wat | spoke gk oo of e dewainees. the same night that | saw the deusinees handouffed w each oth:‘n
*as wormg%u in the female secuon, and a very overweight ipterpretar, a TITAN Contractor.

Q. Whny were the detawices c each pude oo the floor and walking around?

A. The MPs were rnaking these two detaipees do exercises and “smokiog” thew. From what I understand these two detainees
werc in the same ceil 4 a young boy when they came ioto the priscn, the boy was fifieen or sixteen year old, and supposedly the
two raped the young bOy in the poson. Thers were also Iraqi guards mside the prisop, the Irag; guard saw it going oo aud told
ths MPs about it and the MPs ended up moving the boy o a juvenile cell. Then the two detainees who abused the bay were Pt
1a separate cells ip isolation and “amoking” them, making them do push-ups and other cxercises, Afier that incident, they didn't
i£C us go to the isoianon cells anytnore and the MPs kept us out of there. Prioc to that | could just go in there wheg ] wanted but
if I was goiog to 4o & full {nlerrogation I bad to let my supervisor know. Like one time when | wanted (o bang a Koras into one
of the detainees the MPs would oot let me take i 1o and wouid nol take it for me.

{Q. What was the purpest tor you bewng present curing this incident?

A. Myself and my ioterpretor and analyst were asking one of the detamnees that was assigned (o me questions through the cell
door

Q. What olher ways were the detainees abused?

A. Omnce [ saw a detainee being walked on their bands by and knees with a leash by an MP. The MP bad a surap from & manress
or some cioth, he was an E-5 Guard, white male, 5'117, medium bild, maybe 175 pounds, I'm oot sure what ymit be was in, he
ned dark bawr, lgh and ught bair cut. .

Q. Did you ever take any phowgraphs of the detainees”?

A. No.

Q Do you know of anybody who ook photographs or videotaped the detainers?

Grst two or three weeks oulside the facility, and then afier the firat cauple of weeks they were brought ino wooden boolhs outaidd

gaving two inmates wallkeng in the ixolaton section of the cells oaked and bandeuffed to each other. One of the MP: took a Nerf

|

]

10 EXHIBIT

T NTas oF MAKING STATEMENT
; PAGE OF 1 PAGES

]ADD!TJDHA.L PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING “STATEMENT OF_ TAKEN AT DATED

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PEASON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST BE 8F INDICATED ’ .
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USE THIS PAGE IF l!El’ 7. K THIS PAGE IS NOT NEEDED, PLEASE Pﬂocg"s_ (O FreaL PAGE OF THIS.FDHM. \

STATEMENT or” _______  TAKEN AT paTED 2004/01/31

9, STATEMENT [Continued) o
Q. Have you ever seep any photographs of any detainees?

A. Not besides the photograph in their personal file. _ o

Q. Have you tver seen anybody providing any photograhs to any other individuals?
A. No.

Q. Did you ever sce anyont with a camera taking photographs of detainess? _ ‘
A. Manoy of the MPs bad cameras. but they would @ke pictures of themselves. 1 never saw apy MP ke pictares of any detainess
while they were han ed. :

Did you ever s&
Hult any o tapees? g e
™ saw MPs walking detainees o 2 jeagfhand bandcuffing them together. There were fouar of five MPy that were involved i
these types of thinga. : ‘
Q. Describe where the two inmates that were bandeuffed together naked walked?
A. They walked out of the isclaton section, up onio the second foor, through the whoie isolation section, then they went down
to where thr Iragi police were and they went back to the first flcor. They eventually uncuffed both of thepn from each other and
then separsiely and that is the last time ] saw thran.  Afizr &Be two handcaffed detainees were handeoffed individually, there was
a third detaines that came from over where tbe ragi Police were, I'm really oot sure, and he was nat in the isolation celi bom the
beginning. and he came. The same four of five MPs told tbe detaines [o take his clothes off, he was paked and they made him dd
push-ups, low crawl on the ground.  They were yelling at the detsinee while he was doing this. There was ne kicking or
punching, if they wanted him to go the ground they would move the derinees amm o e ground and push them down.
. Did you ever scc any of the Lsted suspects phowgraph or videoape any of the detainees?
No.
gid you ever receive any pbotographs of the detainees from the listed suspects or otber persoanel worlang at the prison?

0. :
Did you receive emailed picrares of detainees 0r email picrures of detainees?
No. : - : .
Did you ever throw 2 football at the detainees?
No.
Who were the detainees abused? -
" 1 don‘t remember the two that were haodeuffed  Onc was about §°, very sidnny, 140 or 145 pounds, black han, beard,
mustsche, and the otber guy was about the same build, about 577, black hair, beard and mustache. The guy that was cn the
leash | don't remember what be Jooked like, | hust remember he was built for an Irag, he bad a scar that was a coupie of inches
oo the nght side of his seck. He was about 5'87 and built, 150 pounds.
. Is is comumon practics to have MPs assist in interrogatons”
1t's not common bul it happens sometmes. _ :
Who told the MPs to conduct the interrogations? v
Mo oge, they aren't allowed to conduct the inlcriogatons, . s
What form of interrogation techniques were the MPs told (o use? .
. We asked them if they could come in and randomly yell at the detaimee, somnenmes thers would be MPs m the booth just o
12y with the detaines while myself and my anilyst would go outside and walk,
.  Werr any of the detainess injured during any interrogations by Mibtary Intelligence (MI) with MP persoonel?
No. : :
Were any MI or MP personne! left alope with female detainees?
No. We only had three or four (4 inces und | never bad o wierrogake ooe of them. .
Did you ever sec a videoclip o avang sex with a female detainee or female at the prison?
No.
Has apyope distussed with you any incidents Dat happened o the detainecs at the prison?
1 mever heard anything about anyose hirting or baving anythiog sexual to do with the detatnees.
Can you describe tae four of five guards that were present for the two inmates being hancuffed naked?
There were three white males and a black mmale, that is all ] remember.
Do you have anyrung else you wish to add to tus stalement? -
No detainees were abused or hur in my custody.

Do ”e anythng else you wish to add to thu statement?
. No!
ST TEND OF STATEMENT I I T LR i T
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. SWORN STATEMENT
For use of this form, see AR 190-85; the propenent agency is ODCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
Tike 10 USE Section 301; Tite 5 USC Section 295%; £,0. 9357 dered Novembaer 22, 18943 /SSN/
To provide commanders and law enforcement officials with means by which information may ba accuiately
Your sCCial seCUrity numbar s used as an additionalisiternale measns of identification 10 facinste tiing and retneval

AUTHORITY:
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE:
ROUTINE USES:

DISCLOSURE: Disciosure ol your social security humbes is voluntery.
1. LOCATION 2. DATE IYYYYMM, . FILE NUMBER
A%l GHARMB Fo  iRag 2ped ob 10
5. ! ST NAME, MIDDLE NAME 3 ;7. GRADE/STATUS
8. 101
YPAG CELL Q1L . BALUDAD (LALECTioNAL Fachyty | FoR Amy CunAvh (&4 Q

. WANT TO MAXE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

[ A “TuE 01T oF Tl ™MALYMATE CEue AT ABu CRRAID -[= HavE LoD 10 Tuid SGoTum
St WD FEBRUARY Dopy. DETCATN FilLS ARE Pitiufd we Dy FROW Dafilisny
prv LOLLED 1WTL Suf DETABASE . THLY BRL PulEd AFRT And RE PNLKRGED In AUNFSTw
ERNER. A DETCRLLS REVIEW AWTRAITY Fofivn AND TRACKING SHEET ¢ RTTAMED
To Tuc FACRALE, TTHE £1E> RRE TTAGN REVTWEd BY TUE DETEaion fhview
RWTHORTY  nelC TARY RRE  CLASSHFED AND  LWERE RECOWmENDATING g Ty
TP sTen OF T ChsEs prg waec. FuEd Zan B CLoafDd SECwaiTY "‘HERHEE,
Ciivemwar SECURAY FRTERNIE, Towitthn v agef Awd Wiimefl CRiw i, REloerBndger.,
WCLMBE  \WTERM , RELEASE on REFER o 106G (1eads cfimmei Courws). pevre o
REVitw TaE RESwTs ME Lecezb  [MTo TuE DATABASE . SECUTY (MTEANEL F1vEs
peT on W MoeD  BRE FEDd fws iTel WL Tq Zontd . CUARCATILY THE Fiils GO Mh‘ﬂ
To Til B AR RS TueRE !5 mo lemeln Awy{ DELAY iR BoRRDE ALK FILES
CLndnfFEd 85 madar CRwiwals ARk STRIPFED OF SENRTNE DoluWLaTy and TLED
tw B Box Awar Tl Pl ul 3Y ont BEuLay b DT REPRESENTITIVES . WHEa “THE Fugs RAC
TLCRED W TTHe BLE LolulD 0T o fug DATABALE, THE T§ BoARd AT 50wC TimE Woatb
ALsy DESICANTE CERTAIY CASES Ay Tl CRuw g . IpE FALGS  LibwLDd  SHaP DIfEUTLY
“o LT fmp LoMLD 3L ‘boeusb but of B DATADAIE. FILES .SCREEWED AY w1 HELD A7
1o Frone g0l 68 TAReaCd THE Stamg @it FRoCES, BuT ARC THER DBIVERTED T i,
B pLs CavmE OFF W WMOLD THE ofbiwal DETOaTien PRLKAGE AMD REVILw SHEET wny
RETWENEY To TTHE MRC CELL, THE FLl WDWLD “THEA BE FsRuwnrbEd To “WIE Bopah. s0wE
TimE (N REEL Ok EALLY ™A TUE frgs STARTED COMMING BACK Ut Tue chicmaL

BETENTHR PALKAU ART TUE WA Paferisce ay WELL. ALL OF ~Tuig 15 ™o S gt
oy ATREE : 10
1N AT To oint BORRD. Ol Do o, bave « -:y,l,..a, 0 fo  fhis spatcmnd .

END OF STATEmELT

§ 11 INITIALS OF PE NG STATEMENT
: “ FAGE 1 OF _l_ PAGES
ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING “STATEMENT _____ ENRT ____ DATED

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITICNAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT. AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST 8E BE INDICATED
DA FORM 2823, DEC 1998 DA FORM 2823, JUL 72, 1S DBSOLETE i UIAPA V1.00
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STATEMENT OF

8. STATEMENT (Continved)

TAKEN AT M (S pavep 10 Juwe O

v

WITNESSES:

WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS DN PAGE__ T} . | FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
@Y ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE, | HAVE INITIALED ALl CORAECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR RE AH N THOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT. AND WITHOUT COERCION. UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE, O i £

AFFIDAVIT
. HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD AEAD TO ME THIS STATEMENT

Subscribed and aworn to bclova mw, » peraon suthotired by law to

ldmnutcf oaths, this AQ I:Ilv of '3-, j-ﬂ < ZQL

CAGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

f Person Adrmuresteting Qath)

{Typed Name ol Ferson Administersg Oeth)

ACMTY 136

CRGANIZATION DR ADDRESS

' tauthotity To Administer Oaths)

INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT

pace ) or _J_ eacks

PAGE 3. DA FORM 28232, DEC 18584

UEAFA V1 .00
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CJTF7-TF Fay - | ‘ 20 June 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

susizct: nierview o
i. O dersigned conducted an telephonic interview OF
SPC, B Company, 1* Military Intelligence Battalion, Military

Intelligence Brigade, hereinafter referred to as Source, concerning his recent deployment to Abu
Ghraib (AG). During the interview Source provided the foliowing information:

a. Source amrived in AG, Iraq on 2 Nov 03, as part of 4 six-person team sent to support the
323 MI Battalion as an annlyst member of an interrogation Tiger Team. Upon arrival to AG,
his team was broken up and sent to different interrogation teams. Source’s duties included
analysis of information, preparation of interrogation plans, transportation of detainees to and
from the interrogation site¢ and writing reports based on information obtained during the
interrogations. Upon His arrival to AG, Source was briefed on the Imerrogation Rules of
Engagement (JROE) and signed 2 memorandum that stated he understood and would follow the
IROE. The IROE was also published on the wall in plain view. Throughout the deployment,
Source reccived “on the job” training.

b. Source was familiar with interrogation plans as his duties included input into these plans.
On the interrogation plan form, there were two columns of procedures listed. The first column
listed the less intrusive techniques like Fear Up, Incentives, Ego Up tte. These procedures could
be approved by his team leader. The second column listed more intrusive techniques such as
Adjusted Sleep Schedule, Diet Munagement etc. These techniques had to be approved at a
higher tevel. Source related there was a lot of pressure 1o produce reports regardless off
intelligence value. This could have contributed to interrogators waking short cuts during
mterrogations.

¢. Source did not witness any abuse or malireaunent of detainees. Source heard rumors about
possible impropnieties, but nothing ¢ . ors included an Iragi General that was
possibly abused, an interrogation b)m:AC] confract interrogator, that involved a
four hour cold shower and plucing the detainee 1n an isolation cell for 1.5 weeks and pictures

taken of the detainees in various unflattering positions.

2. Source was stationed in Germany and unavailable for an in-person interview. A swom
statement was not executed for this interview

5. Point of Contact for this memorandum is the undersigned at Conn:‘

15-6 Investigating Officer

AGD000375

DOD 000463



SWORNSTATEMENT
Foe e ol 1his form, see AR 190-45: the propenet spency ks DOCSOPS
PRIVACY ACT STATEMERT
AUTHDRITY: Title 10 USC Ssctmn 301: Tivte & USC Secen 2051 F 0. 9357 dated Novender 22, 1840 [55H)
PRINCIP AL PURPOSE: Tq provide crammanders and law entovcement ollicialy wiih means by which information vay be sccuwalely enkifed,
ROUTINE USES: Your social security humber 12 used a8 an addilionailalternate means of ibenvitication 19 tacilites lieg and retsevsl
DISCLOSURE: Pisciosere of youl soTial SeCUNtY inambeel i3 vokmYdry.
L4 LOCATION = . DATE frrYYMMID) 3. TIME . FiLE NUMBER
BLDG AT-5636 Gorhamn St. Fort Bragg. NC 283101 2004106/ 1800
LAST NAME, FIRST NAM DLE NAME B. $5K 7 7. GRADE/STATUS
. DRGANIZATION DR ABDRESS . . ] -
A Company, 519th Military Intelligence Battalion, 525th Military Inteliigence Brigade
- -

. WANT T0 MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

From Aug 03 1o m’d Oct 03 | was deployed to Abu Ghraib {AG), lIraq with A Company, 51%h MI Bn. 1am a §7B

Counterintelligence Agent who performed interrogstions. My team's initial mission upon my arrival to AG was ar
imterrogation operations in support of special operation, maybe YICTORY BOUNTY. Prior 1o initial operations, 7
presented us with an Interrogation Rules of Engagement (IROE), which established our authorized limits concerning mtcnogauur;*

techniques. Shortly after my arrival to AG, I was briefed on the {ROE and signed a memorsndum stating I understood and woul
follow the IROE. In my opinion, the IROE was straight forward and clearly established our left and right boundaries concerning
interrogation techniques. All interrogations required an imerrogation plan prior to the interrogation mking place. Every techniqu
had to be approved. The vehicle for requesting the techniques was lhe interrogation lan. Fore i Siecp Schedule
had to be requested through the interrogation team leader 10 the operations cell The operationg
cell would get the approval and return the interrogation plan to the team. The o en be passed out to cach team membe
50 they would know when to conduct thed atiop. e were under pressure from the 205th command and swff to provide
intelligence reporting. 1 have heard of conducted interrogations on occasion and on st least one occasion
diclated to the interrogator his approacll. as not 2 trained interrogator and had o reason to be in the
interrogation booth. In mid Sep 03, the Jomt interrogalion and Debriefing Center stood up and 97B's were taken out of the
interrogation rotation and reassigned. 1 was assigned 10 a Tactical HUMINT Team (THT) in direct support to the MP's. My
team screened workers for the MP 52 shop and conducted C] Force Protection Source Operations. Isaw detainees being naked
they were being searched when they entered the hard site. | also witnessed detainees wearing pink underwear. [ had beard the
reason for this is the MP's bad run out of men's clothing. 1 never saw any guard dogs or heard of guard dogs being used in
mierrogations. No ope ever reported detainee abuse o e, During my ume at AG I did not witness any sbuse or maltrestment

1| of detainees. I never directed the MP's to abuse or maltreat the detainees, nor did I ever hear of it. The MP's never offered to
abuse the detainees for me, nor did 1 ever hear of them offering to do so for other Ml personnel. | departed AG in mid Dec 03.//]
Q: DO YOU HAVE ANYTHING TO ADD TO THIS STATEMENT MU I ]
A NO//HH//!IIl!ll.0'HNIHHNl'IHIIHJ'IIIIIHIIHIHIHIIIHIIHHI/HHIHIIII.’II‘HIHIIIIHIHIIIIHIHI!HIIIIUIIIIIIIIIHIIHIIIIHIH!HIHIHHI
HEHE L LA T HTTNEEEND 0Wﬂlﬂlﬂ!ﬂmHIIIIIH/IIHIIHIIIIIHI!HIIHHHIIUIHHIH!HI

\

10 EXHIBIT - © T L WTIMG OFEERSON MAKING STATEMENT ’
. PAGE 1 OF PAGES

AUUATIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING *STATEMENT OF o TAXENAT

DATED

THE BOTTEM OF EALH ADDITIONAL PALE MUST BEAR THE INITLALS OF THF PERSON MAXWG THE STATEMENT, AN PAGE NUMBER MUST 8E 8E IRDICATED.
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1 savemen or

9. STATEMENT {(Comtised

TAKEN AT oarp  _2004706/04

PR s

p—

AFFIDANIT
o , HAVE READ WIS STATEMENT

}
WHILH BEGINS ON PAGE ;- AND EMDS OGN PAGE

WITHESSES:

i

U7 ME. THE STATEMENT 15 TRUE | HAVE INTIALED ALL CORREC SAND KAYE INTIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE COMTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS
STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AN WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFLL INFLUENCE, DR UNLAWELL INDUCEMERT.

" i) FULLY UNDERSTAND YHE CONTENTS DF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

Subacried and swom 10 belary me, 3 pessan autharired by Jow ta
Ath  deyot
North Carolina

June 2004

sdimeraster palhe, tha
» Fort Bra

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

Name of Parson Adminixiarexy O

5U.S.C31 -~

DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

{hwihonty Te Administor Daths}

INITIALS DF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT

eI

PAGF 3. D& FORM 2823, DEC 1900
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‘ SWORN STATEMENT
For use of this form, ses AR 190-45; the proponent agency is ODCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
Title 10 USC Section 301; Titke § USC Section 2951; £.0. 93597 dated November 72, 1943 (SSN).
To provide commanders and lew snforcement olficiale wilth means by wihich informastion may be accurately
Your socisl SECunTy humber is used &3 an additional/stiemate mesns of identilication 10 tacilitate {ikng and retneval

AUTHORITY:
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE:
ROUTINE USES:

DISCLOSURE: Disclosure ol your socisl security number is voiuntary.
2. DATE (YYYYM, ; Twsi 3, FILE NUMBER
s

1. LOCATION
CAMP VICTORY, BAGHDAD, IRAQ 2004/05/04 1Sy

i. LAST NAMiI FIRST NAME, MIDDLE NAME 6. Ssu 7. GRADE!STI»:IC';US

. ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS
372ND MILITARY POLICE COMPANY, CUMBERLAND, MD (DEPLOYED TO IRAQ)

9.

, WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

| arrived at Abu Ghraibon 1 October 2003. | was and sull am the first sergeant for 3Thh MP Company. 1 didn't really intzract of]
had discussions with the Military Intclligence Leadership i regards to the prison, detainees or rules and regulatias concemming
detainees. My intcraction was with my gher headquarters, 320th MP Banalion. [ would interact with them to leam more about
our missin since this was a new mission for us. My company had the Hard Sitc secunity, Camp Vigilant security, escoring of
detairees. My company was divided into three groups. The 320th MP Bn gave us mostly rules on nmning the pnsoo. They
showed us how to extract personncl i My focus was on life support  There was a chain of command for operanoes
and I did not fall within that chaw. was the officer in-charge of operalions in the Hard Site. He was the one who
manaped it and interacted with them. He departed on 19 December 03. [ never saw or was aware of any M1 oo i
detainees except for one incident whea a general were pulled out of their cell. There was blood o the wall. el
10 find oul why there was e wall. He was 101d that the gencral was giving them 2 hard time when he was SUpnose 10 g0
in and they pushed him in has statements of ths incidenl. The oely tirae | am aware of dogs heing used was right
afier the shoating or sched dsilc shakedowns. Thbe dags were used to canduer searches. [ never saw or had any knowledge
of any photos with MF personnel and detaince. It was ol authorized Lo take photos of detainees. It was common knowledge and it
was not aceeplable. | have never known M1 per 1el] MPs to "sofien up or give "the reatment” o detainees. COL
PAPPAS was in charge of all the MI forces, was mare visible, He attended the Battalion Staff momning
meenngs He mostly talked ahowt what resources could help the overall FOB, MWR, Phooes. internet. We didn't have enough
personmel, resources, or training information 1o conduct all the tasks we had responsibility for. Our snldiers worked 12 hour shifs
under some extreme and difficudt eonditions. ‘

Q. Dk you have anything clsc to add 1o this satement?

A. No.
W i T End. of Sia wemenl LRI

10, EXHIBIT 11. INITIALS RSON MAKING STATEMENT m_
PAGEYOF __&

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING "STATEMENT TAKEN AT _____ DATED _____

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STA TEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST BE BE INDICATED. :
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TAKEN AT M_#_ DATeD 4“1y deoy

STATEMENT OF

AFFIDAVIT
f . HAVE READ OR HAVE H# D READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS DN PAGE__ 7 1HULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

8V ME THE STATEMENT IS TRUE, | HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE, OR UNLAWFUL INDUCBMENT.

(Signaiure of Parson Making Sta

Subscribed and 3worn 1o before me. 3 person authorized by lew 10
dayol  MAY . 2004
(e Ho < tdad T Ag

WITNESSES:
sdimrster caths, this

(JMP

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Signature of on Administering Gath)

{Typed Name of Person Admunistenng Oath}

UCHT Artcle 134

ORGANIZAT! {authority To Administer Oaths)

RSON MAKING STATEMENT
PAG) OF PAGES

USAPA V1.00

PAGE 3, 0A FORM 2823, DEC 1998
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SWORN STATEMENT
Fot via o 1his tarmL e AR 190-45: the propomss! sgeecy i DDCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

AUTHORLTY: Title 20UST Secuon I01; T 5 USC Section 2951: £.0. 5387 dated November 22, 1943 155N
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: Te provide commanders and law milorcament oticials with heans by which inlerrnatinn may be sccurately identihed.
AQUTINE USES: Yaur 30ci SReipity nomber 5 05ad a3 wn sddetionat/eliamaty mians of estification (s {nciitate Ting and revrievsl
GISCLDSURE: " Digchosurs of your socisl LICRIY namber i3 yolentary.
4 LOCAY 2. GATE YYrYMapl) 3. That 4, FILE NUMBER

_ 2004/06/07 Lie@ HRY

7. GRADESTATUS
E NAME 3 £ 55N Colias

. ORGANIZATION DR ADDRESS
1624 12th Sireer, Oakland, CA 94607

§.
_WANT 1D MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER 0ATH:

From #arly Oct 03 w varly Dec 03, § was a member of a six person team sent from GTMO to Abu Ghraib (AG). The mission of
our 1eam was to bring our "lessons learned” from GTMO, evaluate techniques, provide guidelines and teach the TIGER TEAM
concept. 1 am a trained Interrogator and CI Agent and have past experience in conducting interrogations in Kosovo and GT™MO
and have conducted over 200 inferrogations. When we arrived at AG we spent a few days assessing operalions. Operations
appeared 10 be disorganized. After the first days I went 1o a ieam to train and mentor. | rotated through and worked with just
about everyone there, providing training and mentorship. Everything we trained and observed was in compliance with basic

human rights and tbe Geneva Convestio d they employed ]oterrogation plans which outlined all rechniques to be
used and w viewed and approved Afetr about the first six weeks | moved Lo a lisison
team wi W:Enand.led e acilitated interrogal suppart for Otber Government Agencies (OGA). 1

never obseTved or heard of MPs, OGA or Ml abusing detainees or doing anything outside the Geneva Conventions. 1 was awase

that "short chaiung” was used with some detainees and clothing removal could be employed. It would be part of the interrogation
pian and approved by "higher.” There was a lot of detanee nakedness at AG. In many ¢ it was pecause there was a lack of
clothing at the facility. Those who cooperated got clothung first. | remember once tel that one of “my detainecs”
Jneeded clothes.  Removal of clothing for inlerrogation purposes was a "guestionable technique™ thal teded approval snd was

allowed in GTMO. but rarely occurred. I did see strip scarches {or secuniy purposes at AG. ! conducted random checks
hard site almost daily and never observed abuse. 1 did bear Jots {"brainstorming®) of innovative techniques which were

determined 10 either be autborized or deemed too aggressive through discussion and cvaluation. Dogs were there for police
enforcement and never used in interrogations to my knowledge. Cameras were pot allowed and I'm cerizin if somebody were
observed with ooe 1mumediate cortective action would be taken by MPs or Ml Once an FB! agent was taking photos and within

seconds | confronied and stopped him. OGA were professional and did not employ any illegal or unauthorized techniques

knowledge. The liumus test for e is that nothing should be donc to 2 detainee that an interrogator couldn't handle himself and

nothing tmmoral. Sleep deprivation was pot employed at AG. In GTMO we bad "Praject 21° where 2 detainee would be
interrogated for 16 hours followed by 5 bours rest; for, 2-3 days.

{Q: Do you bave anything to add 1o this statement
A; No.
IIEHHHIHHIHINIIIHHHI!HHHH/H/U!HNOTH[N

‘N‘u..

. / = - r.
10, EXHRIT - b QPPERSN MAKING STATENENT ”
: PAGE 1 OF

LOWSH I I T W

in the

to my

o

~{

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE WEADING “STATEMENT OF ' AXEN AT — DATZD —_—

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADD!FIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INTIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STA TEMENT. AND PAGE KUMBER MUST BE BE INDICATED.
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STATEMENT D¢

Tenar  _Oakland, CA pATED _2004/06/07

8, STATEMENT [Coatmued

AFFIDAVIT

L VAVE READ DR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENY
™ LFULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS DF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
142 BCTTUM I £ FAGE < s THE SV IELSLIE . { HAVE MADE THIS
B A3 L COEROIG, U2 AWFUL INFLUERCE, OR UNLAWTUL ISDUCEMENT,

{Sigmatuce W Aarsor umsw

WITNESSES: Sulyzcribed snd swom 10 belore ma. a porsen swthonsd by Lew 1o
admessier paths, s 7th dayet June
egenberger, Oakiand, CA

DRGANIZAYION DA ADTHESS Sggnature of Ferzen Adminisi

. ame of Parssn Adawns 1ring Gatk!
5 1.5.C 303
DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Aurdority To Adoworster QRibs)
INITIALS 0F PERSON MAKING STATEMENT
PAGE o PAGES
PAGE 3. DA fmm 2823, DEC 1938 USMAYLID
AGOO0OO381

DOD 000469



SWORN STATEMENT
Fau waw of this form, sae AR 130-45; e sroperent agency is 0DCSTPS
. PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHORITY: Titke 10 LUST Sectisn J01; Tit 5 USC Saction 2951; £.0. 9197 dated November 22, 1943 [SSA.
PRINCIPAL PURPDSE: Ta pravide commanders and Lrw enfarcement atficials with means by which intarmation may be accurdely identitied.
ROUTINE USES: Your social secuntty aumber i uand az an sdditionalishemets masns ol iwlification to Tacsivane flng wd tetrieval.
DISCLOSURE: Discionare vl yDur 3000E SeCUnly number it vokmiary.
2. DATE PYrmisbs 3 TiME 4. HiE NUMBER
2004/06/06 /3
FIRST NAME. MICOLE MAME 6. SSN 7. BRADMISTATUS
: E-5/NG
B, DRGAN DRESS

72nd Military Police Company, 992 Troop Command, Army National Guard

. WANT TD MAKE THE FLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

Froth 21.or 22 May 03 10 4 Nov 03, | was érployed 10 Abu Ghraib (AG). I was roiated and worked in every position within the
faciliry as was the porm in the 72nd MP Company. b general, MPs maintained control of e detaines population by idemilying
the leaders within cell groups and then making thein responsibie {or translating and maintaining conwol. If that did not work we
would use isolation 1o improve cooperation. MPs never used physical force, withheld food, humilialed or otherwise atused
detuinees as 2 comrol measure. MPs were asked 1o provide security for interrogations and 1 observed Ml interrogations both in
the hozd site {Tier 1A} and in tents in Camp Vigilant. | saw M use stress positions (standing, arms outstreiched) and believe this
was an cffective technique. 1 did not consider it to be abusive or employed cacessively. Ml also cmployed sleep deprivation and
verbal assault (yelling) techniques. I never saw M1 do anything 1'd consider really “crazy.” MI (both soldiers and Other
Government Agencies (OGA)) did use clothing rernoval as an imerrogation technique in Tier 1A, It was not conmon bul i was
routine and authorized by M1. Generally a detainse would only be without his clothing for a few howurs. | pever saw or heard of
detainec being kept naked for exiended periods. ] was never on a shift where I personally saw or received a request for renroval
of a dewainee’s clothes, 1 observed naked detainees when | came on shift and was told MI had requested it. MPs never used
clothing remaval as a tool 10 conirol a detainee.  MPs routinely used hoods when transferring detainees with the facility. This waﬂ
done as & sccurity measure. Hoods were not used 2s punishment or in interrogations I observed. 1 did not wiliess any abuse or

. | maltreatment of detainees while at AG. 1 never saw or heard of any photography of detainces. 1 was never asked nor heard of
any other MP being asked by M1 to abuse or humiljag detainecs. MP's do not wrilize humiliation as 2 form of control. ’
Q: Do you have anything 1o add 1o this statement

Ay No A R R L e e e T L e
,if&’lIN!HIIHH////H/H!H/!H/H/H/."!/HIHIIU/End of SutemcnUHHH/H!IHIHIHHIHHIIIIIIHHIIII!II!III/IHIIIHHHHHHIIHHHIHHILI!
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10, EXHIRIT 1. INITI MAKING STATEMENT .
PAGE 1 OF AGES

ADDITIONAL EAGES MUST CONTAIY THE HEADIVG “STATEMENT OF e TRKEN AT —_— m

THE EDTTOM OF EACH AGDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT. AND FAGE BUMBER MUST BE BE IWDICATED.
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STATEMENT OF — tugvar _Henderson, NV patep _2004/06/06 —
l e
MHT {Coariniad] . /

AN 4
\,

»
i ¥
(¥
]
fd ¥
AFFIDAVIT -
! . BAVE READ OR HAVE HAD AEAD TD ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH EEGINS ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE £- LY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. 1 WAVE INTFIALED ALL CORRECTIONS ANT HAYE ITIALED THE BOTTOM DF EACH PAGE CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MRDE THIS
STATEMENT FREELY WITHDUT HOPE OF BEMEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT THREAT DF PUNISHMENT, AND-WITHOUT C , UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE, DR URLAWE UL INDUCEMENT,

WITKESSES
DRGANIZATION §R ADORESS - e
‘ Lo - L 5 U.5.C. 303
DAGANIZATION OR AODRESS - -... . - ‘ Manhoricy Te Aominssiar Qatrsl
WITIALS DF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT
‘ PAGE 1 o
PAGE 3, £A FUSM 2827, REC 1952 : : ararim
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SWORN STATEMENT
For use ol this form, see AR 150-45; the propenant apency is COCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHORITY: T 10 USC Swction 30, Tiua § USE Sevuon 2851; £.0. D397 deted Hovernbe 22, 1843 S5SNI
PRINCIFAL PURPOSE:  To provids commandars sad law sntorcement oticiale with masna by which niamation uy ln scoursialy xsentriwed.
ROUTINE USES:  Your sacisl security humber is ussd us sn addnioneVaharnste of identificaven ta taciinats liing and reumval.
DISCLOSURE: Olsclosurs of your social secuity humber is veluniary.
1, LOCATION 2. DATE [YYYYVi 3. TIME . FILE NUMBEY
DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS 2004/05/28 |

AME, FIRST E. MIDDLE NAME 8. 55N GRADE/STATUS

€. OAGANIZATION DR ADDRESS
.6t MT BN, 98th Division (IT)

, WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

as mobilized with the 325th M1 BN, My du ition was the Assistani S-3 (Plans}. We repornted to Fort Dix oo Febnuary
2003anr.lwcrcthmforahmnamonm?v-'eyﬂ;'gn:ployndwkunitmdwuﬂhacfurmnam:h._\ﬂ_emdnt
April 26. 2003 xnd 3t up in Balad, lng. sm:mMayaunumchnfmgam\mm_Mm
.7, On 7 Junc, | was j 10 e T2 Siaff - m particular the C2X sbop. My immediate supervisor
i him. The first time | beard about Abu Ghraib, was when plans for Up
VICTORY BOUNTY were being developed. The operation was focused oo » lit of FEDEYEEN MEMBERS we bad received
We had (o identify 2 location o place persamne] caprured dunng U icn. Cwmommunop!mhn_uxthcy
were overcrowded. ] am pot swe who b, taxt this ndhqm;mdhmwummamweu_mn
facility and it was being repovated already. ¢ in and 0ld me sbou the plan 10 use Abu Ghnib. Witkin 43
bours. be and | were waveling 10 Abu Ghraib 1o assist tn 1be sat up of Atu Ghraib as an inlerTogalict . This cffort was pard
of the saff process to develop an QPORD for the in ion [pedity | do not remanber when VICTORY BOUNTY took
place. It must have been sometime in August. ‘W - I visited Aba Ghruib for the fim time, the caly

npel there were toe MPs. Atu Gloub was an overflow for civilian detainees identifind a5 i oo lraqi crimes (Crimomls).
ﬁmwnhugepm‘dlhmmwinmdiuhudyu!up “The highest rking indi ] saw there was & major (1 do
pot retoember his name). There was another unit arriving and meywmungi e detainees there already.
They were all in civilian clothes but | did not see apy abuse A week later, 1 visited Abu Ghraib o fi
up and ry to solidify what facilities were available w0 usc for VICTORY BOUNTY, mchuding the newly refurbiched celis inside
the formeT maximus securiy pnson. We ook photos and also Jooked at ia) sites 10 deploy s TROJAN 10 Atu Glaaib. By
(his time, the 205th was also conducting is leadeyshup reconpassance on the ground but | can't reall remember who was .
!lh:nbcgmmvzﬁngI.OAh.lG!u:.iblwiu.amamhcrwmdwouldcmmwiihlhﬂ%lnd 325th umtil e middle of
Qctober. | never observed apy detainee atuse dunng of my visiis and pothing scemed out of the ordi i
réinatioe ] dig with Abtu Ghraib was primarily wii or if she was not available it was wil
. These coordinalion visils were pot 063 schedule; they increased when these wuqﬂuégom
un:nddeuuudwbcnnoopemiomwokﬂzu, did coordmate with the Inerrogatios Control Element (ICE) oo 8
routibe basis because be had a daily report be had 1o submut 10 be command group. My convensations were focusod on HUMINT|
Requiremenis. My responsiolity wnmlocusudxcm!mnﬁ_rwduu and discuss in! jon rosuls. | ; FAST J
information on all daw collected and & summary on HUM! tions. 1 spoke 10

1w
22,
on

try to fund ow where jgns were pomng, what information they ] g and the ion of the

g qukigodim:l!y%memosmhh:ﬂmnﬁmlw - hﬂ'wt::_fnqmu

by higher and they wamed & immodiately so | y wepl o the BDE. | would 1ry w kaeep the or the HUMINT Operations
Cell informed of 0w wQquines and requircments vis ¢-mails. There was an extaordinary smowunt of from e chain of

gel results. | was sensi lhug;mn darectly from COL BOLTZ initially and then ) FAST

as there. Once COL SUMMERS arrived, | was oot as heavily nhdw#yﬂG(P)Fm. although
tasked me directly. This presiure was ncowring duning the same Lime VICTORY BOU was heing planned and nccurming.
Therr was & conccrmn we were 0ot gefting the [eedback from mterrogaions and we needed to do befter 10 fix it. We neaded to fi
out @ way 1o get more feedhack, was 3 sentiment st the OG and DSD were unhappy with the leve] of products coming
of micrrogations. There was fmgucnt exprestion of dusatisfacuon  The C/HUMINT missicn took 8 back seat and we hat
HUMINT problems out in e field. The source handing was extraordinarily broken. The maneuver comunanders were Dot
adhering 10 the requirements in the umbrella concep for Counteriptelligence and HUMNI’?mmlﬂml and were nmning sources.
Untrained personpel were roulinely wsking “informants” to collent infremation, in direct ict with the requirements of the
umbmrella ﬁ and long-esublished Ammy docrine. The Division commanders would W

~this is how we're going
10 fun it” ir views they were having success capraning a lot of folla, conducting rai

10. EXHIBIT "Y1, INITIALS OF B AKWNG STATEMENT : r
. : | PAGE 1 OF AGES

TAKEN AT DATED

ADDITIONAL PAGES. MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING *STATEMENT

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS DF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATFMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST BF 8E iNDICATED.
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. AUSE THIS PAGE {F-NEEDED. IF THIS PAGE IS NOT NEEDED. PLEASE PROCEED TO RNAL PAGE OF THIS FORM. '

STATEMENT OF ———_— TAKEN AT —___ DATED 2004/05/28

_ STATEMENT (Continved) ]
m;wmmmdawmduhmm. They refused 10 let & g0 duc 1w the fegr that the wrong might be let loose
ormcyfelummaywouldtmﬂybenlhﬁ'ingmismemdwi thz next day. By docrine, this 0ot be done and
sources could he milaced im danger. Thcdivisimmmdmhldwfullmtymnhlcmﬂmuw":lcwl. | wnuld
ajsammi;pmblmMmummimemmmmamnmmmmmummum.wmm .
didn't wamt 1o release amyone (bey replied via » Mya-muhwlhm.vgr'tundmmy.oldﬂm}hccomwurlhn‘m
iraq. The com nmwﬁeh&ﬁmmmndm.mmwmmgmumcnx:.h misl

of all e presaoe 205th M] SA,memmmcqmmWMppmMPf&gumm.
veloped & mEMOTAD! fmm;:mm. 1mmw%mmm wuhlh:?Gs:mnblmk. 1do

not remember if | over saw & signed memn . There were certain that oG

mclhndsmdmhniqmmmcmmommmmumedianM(mm

mmm:‘uwmmmmmmmnmmmmmmw hods, she 1 guidance.  She
was Dot going 1o go out oo a Limb. summwau»umgcmmmnmm‘nmmampmi Anecdotally,
peaple talked about slecp deprivation and stressed positions T | never saw sy . 1 never beard any discussions aboul
Baked detainees orhumﬂmmgduaincu.DmngMGMiHcr‘:fmwisit,lwh EAST's office. | was made the POC for

the initia) Abu Ghraib visit. | coordinated for a copvoy and 100k the Leam olt 1o Au Ghraib, We returned that same day afier.
spending four hows on site looking at the facility and bow operstions were heing nm. We did nol discuss interyoganom
wechniques . Qur £ i iom of the Tiger Team concept. 1 did pot go beck 1o Abtu Ghraib with the team. | did shend
meeting wi lmahomks:dmdcv:bpmeumﬁwdﬂamwm;ndlmwnhasmomm
ouilt 3 data rsil .MwumnemmvmymmeOTmm:.Th:GTMOmwumadw;ow
Abu Ghraib and sbow the 519th and the 325th bow to nm operations. ‘The 519 and the 325tk were some of the most ucucally
experienced inerrogators under combel cooditions. They had conducted operations in Afghanisun and pow Lhere was a team
coruing from GTMO 10 ieach them how 10 run operalions - 1o make our operations like GTMOs optratons. It did pot g3t well,
maving outsiders whom had not operated under fire critiquing their work. | did not atend he out-bricf MG MILLER gave. No
one from C2X sucnded. The briefing, | believe, was directly given LTG SANCHEZ. 1 never saw a copy of ihe outtwiel. The
only violauon of [ROEs | was aware of was from Umm Qasar (Camp Bucea), | coordinsed with OGA xod Felt fike we had &
pood worlang relationship. There was an OGA LNO in the C2X and we shared resources. We discussed bow we could thare
ielligence they gathered and inwelligence we gathered (o answer each other's requiremens. | vikited the Chief of Siation once

and met with another individual at mothey time. CITF-7 es blished a release hoard whose membess _ BG
KARPINSK] and BG(P) FAST (chair). The recorders m MP Assisint Recorder snd mysell 2 = M1

.| Assistant Recorder. BG(P) FAST was tatked by MG WO Tesolve the prison overcrowding problem as it
related to the M1 Holds. Altbough the overcrowding of Abu Ghraib was a overall concern, the reason for tbe esuablisdunail of
the board was a icgal reasos. The Geneva Convenuon reguired inee's status be reviewed ix months, Since we

were closing ib oo six monihs for the [first delainess., SJA ,was wasked by rome
up with a procedre 10 rejease detaineess. The recorders soeened all dediinee files. § would look aor circumalances of capture sd|
assexs their inclligence vatue. 1f oo intelligence value was identified, they were seal up 10 the rebease board for revew, As time

wiot on calition Provisional Authority began 1o fress us 1 more quickly deal with the backlog. We then began a two-lier
. s0d | would sit oo 2 mini pancl and look a1 100's of cases. We would do our
g:uozrymidcnuymmcmmthcrucmtmdmmtb:mudind ining whether they sayed or wers releasad.  Since

we had 50 many tases (o revicw, 1he Releass Board began meeting Iwice & week. Iﬁ: last woek 1 was there, 1 roviewed over 500

cases. As pant of my baale bandofT, | extended the snvolvement of e 2X Section 0 include thiree additional MI 1 w0
help expedite the review of backio) od cases, CFTF-7 held » commander's VTC evéry evening {the Bare Update Brief, or BUB)
in the Joint Operations Cenuer. C2 sextion was required to scnd a represcotative, including CIX. Peri ‘gal.!y.lmmdndmc

BUB a5 a C2X represcnuauive, The purposc of our anending was 1o pet insight inw current and oRgoing opcrations n onder 1 st
in touch with the opcrationat lempo. Az & result, it was mtended bt we would be able to anticipaie short-icrm mterrogation
requurements. Oue evening, afier a BUB (1 did pot awcod tis BUB), 1 overheard several officers (1 do not know remember who
they were) returning from the BUB discussing how ibc CITF-7 Commandar, LTG Sanchez, bad made some sanling remarks
dunng the BUB. y said that during the BUS, ooe of e subordinaie comummders had reporied the capture of 8 pumber of
Lragis duning a raid. in responsc wo this repont, LTG Sanches allegedly repliod something o the affect of “Wh are we dewining
this people, we should be killing them.” This type of comment canmribaicd © a command climae tat iaucmi an stmosphere
where ill intntioned personnct could perceive cirmmsunces where deeds Dot consistent with miliury standards would be tol
if not condoned. | w;#m 10 discuss this mvestigation with aayone eise. Q. s there anything you would like 1o add 10

this stalemenl? A, N
DRI G T ERd of S
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avcxneny AT TR T,
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STATEMENT m-_  TaKENAT Dovens, MA - patep 2R —

5. STATEMENT {Cantireed) //

1DAVIT
1, . HAVE READ GR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 3, AND ENDS ON PAGE 3¥7T FULLY UNGERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
BY ME. THE STATEMENT 15 TRUE. | HAVE WITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT

THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFLIL INFLUE ) 7.

[Sigasiie of Pegson Starement]

Subu.:rib.d end swoln 10 belore me, B person suthored by lsw 1o
administer oaths, this _28th  dey of MAY . 2004
vens, Massachusells

WITNESSES:

ORG.ANIZATION OR ADDRESS

on Adminisiarng Dath)

UCMI, ARTICLE 136
DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Autharity To Admanister Dethe)

INITIALS DF PERSON MAXING STATEMENT :
: PAGE 3 OF 3 PAGES

AP Wi I

Aasr na e FARSE aEmaa AP chae

AGO0000386

DOD 000474



SWORN STATEMENT
- Faae sl chis lwm, sen AR 10045: 1he prapensnt sgency is DDCSDPS
] PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT ’
AUTHORITY: Tiske 10 USE Sertian 301: Tivke § USE Section 7951;E.0. 9397 dared Nevernber 22, 1043 /55W7.
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provide rommanders and law enipreemsent Hiicias with means by wiich infucmdtion #iay be atconalely ioentifue
ROUTLNE USES: Your sotial securily number i3 used s e adkbonalianemate means of identification 19 facitale fag and retrevs.
DISCLOSURE: Disclosure of your social Secunity sumbey is voluatary.
2 DATE 7Yy - |2 T - 4. FILE NUMBER
2004 /06/06 Lz q_

5. 55N N 1. GRADE/STATUS
» R CPT
¢. ORGANIZATION OK ADDRESS

72nd Military Police Company, 992 Troop Command, Army National Guard -> - s

Erom 21 May 03 1o late Oct 03, [ was deplryed to Abu Ghraib (AG}, as an MP Plai the 72nd MP Company. ]
was in charge of the night shift at the facility, 1 also had on shift with me. My
company's mission was to prepare the facility to accept detainees. 1 was one of Lhe First soldiers on the ground and helped sct up
perimeter security while the rest of the unit convoyed to the location. The secondary mission for the facility was to ran the lraqu
comections officers to eventually take over the faciliy. During my shifts, 1 would walk through the: facility 10 make sure things
were running smoothly. At least ence a night I would physically check on operations. Most of the interTogation activities _
occurred during the day; 1 never winessed a night interrogation. [ observed M making detainces do Physical Training (PT) in lhr
tents. On most occasions the MI folks would do the PT with the detainee. 1 also withessed MI making detainees siretch their
arms out for extended, but not extensive periods of time. § did not witness any abusc or maltreatment of detainces while at AG. 1
was never asked nor heard of any other MP being asked by MI 10 abuse or humiliate detainees. 1 never witnessed any nakedness
of detainees outside of inprocessing (I once participated in the search of an inprocessing female). 1f 1 would have beea asked by
M) to strip 2 detainee, | would have questioned the request. By doctrine MP's do not employ techniques 1o control or modify
behavior above restrant and segregation. MP's ﬁ not yulizehumiliation as a form of control.

WANT TG MAKE THE FOLLOWING S‘I'AT!HE-NT UNDER DATH:

Q: Do you have anything to add 1o this statemen
Ax No IR TR T LY AR L A
wfH!mJI/IIl/H//h’lH/lfU/HHm/HIlHH/lE.nd of Statenen/ I T

o
.
10. EXHIBIT 1ONITIALS G STATEMENT
PAGE § OF é! PAGES
ADUITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE KEADING “STATEMENT OF AKEN AT - OATED
THE BOTTOM DF EACH ADDITIONAL FAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND FAGE NUMBER MUST BE BE INDICATED.
DA FORM 2823, ﬁEC 1998 DA FORM 2823, JUL 72.1S OBSOLETE an YL

AGOD00387

DOD 000475



STATEMENT

8 STAVEMENT fazimsed
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SITNFRSES
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(T AL CRRALCTG

DRG AN ATION DR ACDRESS

T U BNESTAND T LENTINTE GF TEE £ TIRE STAT CANT MR
ANREHII Y ]

AFTIDANIT
.. H&VE REAT CH HAVE HAD RTAL TO IS THE STATERENT

SLET NS BGTTON CF EATH PASE DURTARING THE STATDMUNL. THAVEAADE VHIT
1M1 71 Al JeLHIUT COFREION, SIIASH L ¥FLCUNRLL, 0B Wit awhin PEWCLRE R,

Suenstion of Feisan Makong

cvibed and 3wem ig belure me. & persan uthodired by b te
adrwrs Lo Daths, Ihis (ﬂ-“"! dyol  Jwpag + BEEA
-omADfio o bl

{Typod Nam of Parsen tenng Do/

DRGANYATION DR ADDRESS

e et atel Med Uil Ll f et e o naarny Te Adasiaitres (g ths!

HITIALS DF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT

MGE ok 2 pas

PAGE 7, DA FORM 2823, DEC 1235
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STATEMENT DF” TAKEN AT _CAMP VICTORY _ paygp 2004103407
9. STATEMENT (Cortinued) /
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AFFIDAVIT

- , HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT

ND ENDS'ON PAGE 2‘l i 1 FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
. THE STATEMENTIS TRUE. | HAVE INMTIALED ALl CORAECY L ANG HAVA INETIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE

CHNTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT Fii E'L{'&\S'l . WITHOUT

THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, 12 AWT UL BFLY

Regecattire ool Fareg) flaking §ratuwnent)

¥ Subecried snd sworn 10 belore e, B persun auttonred by law to

WITNESSES:
. admirister oathe, this  Tith  day of MAY . 2004
st_CA VICTORY, BAGHDAD, TIRAQ
ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS ISiprmt IT OF forsan Avcmnstecag Dat
. Typed Name of Person Administenng Oath}
. UCMJ, ARTICLE 136
QAGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Aurthority To Admwnisiar Oaths}

INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEME
PAGE

PAGE 3, DA FORM 2823, DEC 1958

AGO0O0O389

DOD 000477



SWORN STATEMENT
- For usa of this form, ses AR 190-45; Tha proponent wh'ODCSOPs

AUTHORITY:
FRINCIPAL PURPOSE:
ROUTINE USES:
DMSCLOSURAE:

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
Tite 10 USC Section 301 Yine § USC Section 2051: E.O. 9387 asted Novembar 22, 1843 (5SN).
To provide comanders Bna law enicigement officils wilh means by which nlormation My be accuraigly wentied,
Your socisl security RUDET 15 Lssd B3 80 sddinonal/aitemale meant pf wantifcanan o taciktate litng and reirevai

Discionurs of your sociel secuiny number & valunwory.”

1. LOCATION
METRO PARK, SPRI

2. DATE {YYYYMM 4. FULE NUMBER
NGFIELD, VA ‘ . 2004/0572

IRST NAME. MID E NAME ~E, S3M

E._ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS
B/CO, SI9TH MILITARY ! 1IGENCE BATTALION, FORT BRAGG. NC 28310

7. GRADE/STATUS
SFC

8.

operaliops. During 1hi
was not a formal Inter

TROE published wi
response. Upon my 2
mission was supposed

stipma of the torure €
was a shifi in lcadersh
charge of the JIDC,
company for HDC.

1t the detainee i the back of the bead. | quggtioned all my NCO's who wilncssed the incident includin

Talso

was given 38 hours to

units and toz addiion

| arvived in [rag on 11 Mar 03. | spen! 7.3 days at Objesti nmastet, 2.5 weeks at Objective Dogwood and 40 days al
Cropper. On quMay 03, during my’:etime a1 Croppe ubmined & report thry normal M channels (205th) and LTC
CHEW stating the living condiuons for the delainees were not up to standard as the facility was 100 crowded, many of-
dewainees should not have been arTested and the detaipess were held too long. } arrived at AG on 25 Jul 03, where | served as ibe
Interrogation NCOIC snd then the 15G of (he first M personpe} oo Site. On 27 Jul 03, sfter sening up the facility, we hegan

EM 14-52 and the cstablished raining narms of the A piErrogation dsr.hnol at Fort Huachuca, AZ. 1 did try 10 get a formal
o)
rmival 10 AU, MYy SUperviso

slatus should have meant thatl there would be specific Source Direcicd Requirements (SDR's) and specific things we would be

iooking for JURIng our INIETTOEALORS. These never came. Aruund Lhis 1ume, ihere was a discussion concerniag the conrl n'
Alities v @ Juint IpterTogatio and Debriciing Center (1DC). Personne) in this discussion included MG MILLER,

TEQUIrcMEnts increased, | shifted 10 2 more e tolt as 15G | 03, a5 | fully transiti

pecame the tot ator NCOIC. "On 20 5 a and | addreascd an aticgation

%971‘;. A/519th M} Bn, deviated from accepablc \nlerrogation practces when he allepedly picked up &
wew hum

threc days siter the incident took place. All three soldiers were given a Ficld Grade Anticle 15 by COL PAPPAS.
While at AG, 1 did hot witnzss or bear about any of e following’ Phy
deranees, unautbonzed video taken of detainees or the

sloud up fur my soldiers and raised concerns when 1 felt they were geiiog MLy (geting toid to copduct shon notice, middle
of the night interrogations when it was not in the nterrogation plan). 1 wentt 15G and then moved 1o Baviljo
December where | worked on 2 Tachieat HUMINT Yezm (THT). Cnm:ii“ cvilan ‘mEmgators, 1 was wld bw

who was considered the bes) wnterrogator io country, tha
recont evenis most hikely occurred because the JIDC lacked Jeadershup, espee

comnbutor (6 the lack of disciphine al the facility. | regeployed from traq on 22 Feb 04

Q. lsthere mﬁmg else you would ke 10 add to this sinement?
A N .
it IHm’HHHH!IHHHHHHIUHHUIHIHHHUIIHHHHEnfd of Suume'mHHHIHHHHHHlHHHIHI!IHHH!HHH 1iftiET

. WANT TO MAXE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

s period, there were approximarely i4 working inErTogalors oo site. T the best of my knowledge There
rogation Rules of Engagement (IROFE) document bt all interrogations were conducted in complisnce With

{t copy 10 headgquariers, but did not et any
Overall, | was excitedl because the

1o last for three weeks and involved trying 10 obtain information on the Saddam Fadeyeen. This spechal

During this discussion | ddressed my concerns over having the JIDC at AG, given
hamnber at the facidiry. Approximalcly st weeks afier my arrival, the 325th ived at the AG. There
¥ ‘o juded COL Pappas being wn charge of all interrogation activities laking
becoming tnc Deputy undes COL PAPPAS and A/515th M1 Bo ing dul 0 suppori
¢ mierTogation NCOIC 1 did ealensive an-siie checking 1o ensure quality c::;ol. ?;éhc ipgisti

7 “

F

1

M} observers described as "2 fittle too rough.” Thers were also altcgati

10 2 ruck W what the

All four witnesses said the incident did no! peeur but
was yeling at the dewinee during this time. ] examined the delainee and found nothing to, indicate

had a medic and & LT on duly examine the dewinee and exccule 3 SWOM statement, All witnesses
cre given 10 for action. Mothing resulted from the incident. In laie Sep O .
rized nightiime inicrrogation of 3 female detainee, 1 was notificd b

sical abuse of dewinees, unauthorized picture taken of
H was kicked out of AG on 25 01 03. 1
strongly disliked me because |

5e
jeave AG by COL PAPPAS

wat the best civilian inetTogator. The
CO's. In my opinion, the miture of
linle “sloppy” and was also 2 direet

curred ially senior
of civilian interrogators angd linguists caused the personncl 1o gela

10, EXHIBIY

11, WNITI ON MAKING STATEMENT

PAGE 1 OF __ 2 PAGES

e

ADDITIONAL PAGES -M

THE BOYTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER
MUIST BE BE INDICATED. :

ST CONTAIN THE HEADING "STATEMENT YAKEN AT _ __ DATED __

DA FORM 2823, D

EC 1598 DA FORM 2823, JuL 72, IS OBSOLETE . VRAPA V1.0

AGOCOD390

DOD 000478



1aKeN AT SPRINGFIELD, VA  paveD 2005/051%

STATEMENT OF

g. STATEMENT {Continued/

AFFIDAVIT

1 . HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ 7O ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH-BEGINS ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE ULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
8Y ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE | HAVE INMTIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE 80TTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFL R ANLAWFUL IND

tSignaivre pf Person Making

VWITNESSES: Subkcribsd and swom to belore me, » person authorized by law 10
adminisiar oaths, this __19__ day ot MAY , 2004
st METRO PARK, SPRINGFIELD, VA

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Signature of Parson Administe

{Typed Nams of Phrson Adminisiering Oath)

UCMI, ARTICLE 136
DRGAMNIZATION CR ADDRESS {Authority To Adrminister Osths)

N MAKING S_TATEMENT

PAGE 2 OF 2 PAGES

, DA FORM 2823, DEC 1888 o o UBAPA V1.0

AGO00D391

DOD 000479






SWORN STATEMENT
Fanane ot dorm, s AR 190-45; thy prupenent apomcy s 0OCS0r'S
PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHORITY: Titie 10 LIS Saction X17; Titke 5-UIST Sarvon 2951, £.0, 5107 dasedf overiber 12, 1143 DV,
PRMICIPAL PURPOSE: To previde Commaniers and low mimcemr sihoss wvik a3 ly wrinel SYHITRALIN My e acCurbialy alamivhad.
ROUTINE USES: Yo sacra acurrly mankd i sl 23 00 Skt umsalst a1 g o) idmriibeation tn Laciviats fing ad rdsevel
DISLIDSURE. ' Diacisury o vaus Secial FRCHilY swmber o veLITY.
1. LOCATION 12, DATE /TYYIMAOT 3 T 4. HLE NUMBER
Abu Ghraib, lrag, APO AE 09335 ' zommi:'_ 1
L 55K 7. GRADESTATUS

MIOLE RAME
3. DRGAMZATION OK ADDRESS

CACI, Abu Ghraib Correctional Facility, Abu Ghraib, lrag, APO AE 09335

| 3 .
" WANT T0 MAXE THE FOLLDWING STATEMENT UNDER DATY:

of the entire base operations. | did not witocss or know about any detainee sbusc, any photos wken or the use of dogs.
Q. Do you have apything to add 1o this sutement?

A. No ‘
IR L 111111 Epd of Staseemeatd IR IR

1 arrivi : ib on 5 October 2003 work as a screeper with in and out rocessed detainees. When [ first arived to Abu
Ghrai gave us a hriefing on Interrogation of Engagement &ROE) and | signed the IROEs. J felt 1 was very
knowledgeable of what 1 could or could not do, was in charge of the Ml folks and COL PAPPAS was in charge

10. ExHIET X 11 gl RSON MAKING STATEMENT
PAGE | DF PIGES

ADDITIONA! PAGES MUST CONTAIN TNE HEADING *S T4 TEMENT OF TAKENAT  _____ DATID

TNE BOTTOM LF EACH ADDITIGNAL PAGE MUST REAR THE MITIALS DF THE PERSOW MACING THE STATEMINT. ANG FAGE NUMEZR MUST BE BE INGICATED.

DA FORM 2823, DEC 1388 D FOAM 2820, JuL 72,15 OBSDLETE waravim

AGO000392

DOD 000480



STATEMENT OF

TAKEN AT M oateo X Zar o5t - /

9 STATEMENT (Continued)
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\\1\3 et ’1/ |

| RN
)|

\\\.\ .
N

“
~
p WS

N

FFIDAVIT
. HAVE READ DR HAVE HAD AEAD TO ME THIS STATEMENT

I )
WHICH BEGINGS ON PAGE 1, /0 ZHI DN S5l
BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. | HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE

CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARQD, WITHOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT. AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE. OR UNLAWFUL INDUCEME!

WITNESSES: . Subscribed snd sworn to before me, @ parson authorired by taw to
adrnister oaths, th:s& day of ; .(M

at

" (Signature of

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

3 TSt #Iing
¢ M T bicle 134
talrnonty To Acrinisrer Gaths)

DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS .
INITIALS OF PsﬂaMlAKI%TATEMENT |
PAGE

PAGE 3, DA FORM 2823, DEC 1598

PAGES

USARA V1.00
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SWORN STATEMENT
Fou van of g o, 3 AR TH045; e propenars sgaacy ik 0OCEOPS

pRVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHORITY: Tite 10 USC Saction 301: Tkl 5 ST Sacten 2951, ED. 2197 datad Neverner 12 1043 18
pRECIPAL PURPOSE: To provis commaniars and pr—— L) -mummummhﬁu_
ROUTHNE YBES: Yaur sacia saaurity et i usas &3 an addetarali sitprmats Ml'W“'ﬂm Timg ond revimval.
PISCLOSUM: Chschasuts o1 Yo Social-SUTH Y numinly B VERITHY ) ;
1. LOCATION 7. DATE /TYYTMMO 3. TIME 4. FILE NUMBER
Abu Ghraib, Irag. APO AE 09335 ‘ 2004704 ]
LAST MAME. FIRST . MIDDAE NAME 15 55K 7. GRADE/STATUS
CPT/03 USAR

3. ORGANLZATION OR AD . . I
OSJA. CITF-7. Abu Ghraib Correctional Facility, Abu Ghraib, Irag, APO AE 09335

8. .
. ”— \WANT 70 MAXE THE FOLLOWING STATEMERT UROER OATH

wld me, | gave bim oY opinion that the photos were ot uplawful, Becausc there was 00 legal basis to seize

agree thai 1 should have reviewed them prior to giving advice.
Q. Do you have anything cisc 1o add © the suatement’

- pever advise 3 commander of |eader 10 sexze pevsonal property from a s0. without s legal basis to do s0.

aclion, bowever o mY kmowledge it is not illegal iolative of any regulatons. gavemE b
photos and 1 pased my advice o8 that discripts

policy, 1 agrec that 2t is inappropriac for cervice members to phowgraph bodies “i batleficld and persons detuined

ade me aware that e discovered withiz the JIDC 3 thumb drive containing phatos depicting dead anu-coalition
{forces and £ anti-coalivion forces oo the banlefied. aaked me if this was 3 violation of the UCMI, Ammy
Regulation 1%0-8, o1 ipicraationa) law. Baswed upon what he toid me, I advised him that it wus not. Based oo what
the private property
of 3 service member, 1 wl jt was proper (o returm e thumb drive W its owner. | did pot review toe potos. 1 |

A. Yes. Since there was Do violatiop of the UCMI, Army Regulations, or § jonal law. there would be no Acgal basis ©
seize property from a soldier under Military Rule of Evidence 316. bad no choice but 1o reowm them. I would
As & mantet of

discripton of the
" HH!HHIHIIHIH.'Hin'!HHHIHIH.’HIHIHIHIIH of summurmumu.-mmmmnmnmmrmmmnmrmmmumnm

™~

during an

ADDITIONE! PAGES MUST COXTAW THE READING “STATEWENT OF oATED

TiE BDTTOM OF EACH AGDITIONAL FAGE MUST BEAR THE RITIALS OF THE FERSDNW MALNG THE STATEMENT, ANG PAGE NUMBER MUST BE BE KOICATED.

/ . .
10, EXHE i RIS STATEMENT a—‘
) vict10f s
]

DA FORM 2823 DEC 1992 s FDAM 2822, JUL 72. (S DBSOLETE

ware T\

AGOD00394

DOD 000482



STATEMENT OF

Jso. sTaTemenT

™~

TA_KEN AT _&Bczh‘_'t MTED _’Zld'_r.n.\lo_@"_-/ .

!
WHICHBEGI z 1. AN
BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TAUE.
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. ¢ HA
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCI

S ON FAGE

WITNESSES:

| HAVE NITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND H

AFFIDAVIY
_HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
Ty UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
ITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
THOUT HOPESE BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT

N DUCEMENT. :

of Person Making Statement)

hators me, 3 parson suthorized by lsw 0
) . 260

Subwcribed and sworn 10

adrmumsiar oaths, this e Z: day of
- ]
- . b

at LA

DRGANIZATICN OR ADDRESS

yped Nemw of Parzon dmurisienng

Ue Mg, Arbele 1306

DRGANIZATION DR ADDRESS

L

TAummority To Admnistgr OBATI

IN . PEHSON MAKING STATEMENT

PAGES

USAPA ¥1.00

PAGE 3, DF'FORM 2823, DEC 1898
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DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
WEADQUARTEAS, TASK FORCE READY and FOB ABU GRANS
APOAE 19302

AFVQ-JA | 27 April 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR Record

SUBJEGT: Procedure 15 investigation Queslions on Photos of Iragis on the Battiefield

1. Or. 27 April 2004 MG Fay nterviewed me in conjunction with the Procadure 15 investigation
he is conducting on intelligence involvernent with civilian internee abuse at FOB Abu Ghraib
during October and November 2003. Durnng the course of his investigalion interviewees related
~ that they had heard of photos being gdiscovered in the Joint interrogation and Debriefing Center
(JIDC) with “disturbing” images on it

2 MG Fay questoned P the deputy director of the JIDC, and learned that
LTC Foust had consulied me when the photographs kepton a “memory stick” were discovered

in the JIDC and that @I returned the memory stick 10 the soldier who owned it.

3. linformed MG Fay that | did recall the avent and my conversations with S The
evem occurred in either late Fepruary or earty March 2004. To the pes! of my recollection the
facts | was presented at the time were:

a. The photos were not taken at apu Ghraib but immediately after an engagement by
coalition forces here in iraq.

b The photos depicled dead annw-coaliion personnel and anti-coalition personnel
getained on the battiefield and masked with emply sandbags. '

c. The photos did not indicate that the bodies or the captured personnel were bemng
anused or treated improperly, merely that their 1mages were recorded by digital photograph.’

d. Thatthe identity of the person who owned the memory slick was, at the lime,
LNKNOWDN.

4. oI sought my advice on whether an offense under the UCMJ, a violation of
international law, or a violation of Army Reguiatons occurred by the taking of these
phoiographs Based on the facls presented 10 me, 1L was and is my opinion that no conduct
pecuried in violation of faw or regulation Army Regulation 190-8, paragraph 1-5(d) prohibits
non-official photography of persons iny custedy at US military facifities. Additionally, the third
and fourth Geneva Canventions of 1949 prohibil making EPWs and Cis the subject of publc
curiosity or ridicule. The photographed personnel were notin custody at Abu Ghraib or al
anotner US Miitary detention faciiity, so AR 190-8 was not violated. Additionally, no inforrmation
was presented lo me indicating that the persons photographed were mage the subjecl of
ridicule or public cunosity. .

5. As o the guestion about whether the pholos of Memory stick shoutd have been returned 10
the person who owned it, | can think of no legal grounds to seize the itemn. In my opinion, 2
violation of law or military regulalions hac not pecurred. The threshold question for a
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AFVO-JA _
SUBJECT: Procedure 15 Investigation Questions on Photos of Iragis on the Battiefield

commander or a miitary magistrate priof to directing the seizure of the personal property of
somaone subject to the UCMJ is that there is probable cause 10 believe a crime had been
committed. See Military Rule of Evidence 316, Manual for Courts-Martial of the United States
2002. The govemment has no right to seize private property without due process of law. Even
erasing the dighal photos in issue would amount 10 @ seizure of personal property absent some
authority to do so under law or military regulations (like the authority we have fo seize
contraband items like aicohol and illegal drugs. Ses CENTCOM General Order number 1a angd
CJTF-7 General Order number 1).

& As 1o the question of whether the solgier's chain of command should have been notified.of
the facts and circumstances as presented, | agree. Al the time, | understood that the identity of
the soldier who owned the pholos and, presumably, took the photos, was unknown. After il
or one of his subordinate leaders determined ownership, the chain of command should
ave been notified. | did not advise him 1O do so at the time believing that any soldier working
in the JIDC was subject to the authority of the JIDC.

7. Additionally, during my conversation with MG Fay, he agreed that given the facts presented,
he also could not think of a violation of the UCMJ, Army Regulations, o internationai law
resuiting from the photographs in question under the circumsiances 8s we understand them
today. .

& | have sent a request o @EINNEESEERS. chief of operational and international law at
05.JA, CJTF-T 1o have a consiceration given 1o 3 FRAGO prohibiting personal photography of
anti-coalition personnel under all circumstances.

o Point of contactis the undersigned a

Command Judge Advocate
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2. DATE (Yrrraios)

7. GRADESTATUS
-4/ AR

FIRST N LE NAME

4. DRGAWIZATION DR ADDRESY
B Co 325 MI BN, Waterbury, CT 06705

b.
N WANT TQ MAXE THE FOLLDWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

as assigned to Camp Cropper just after 4 July 2003, The units slready at Camp Cropper whea | nrrived were frgm $19th MI
BN, the B Co. 325th MI BN and ' ich | do not recall exacily who &cy were, in rfc of MI
Operations st Camp Cropper werm (B 325 M1 Bn company commander) a NHECTORANON
operations). At Camp Cropper | t receive any Interrogation Rules of Eﬂglgnmml (IRQEsY. [ was deployed w GTMO last
i i jye the [ROEs there either, but was famijiar with the term and meaning. 1 sat in on & fcw intcrrogations with
L when 1 first arrived. We always conducted our intefrogations outside the detainment area in a teul. While
amp Cropper, I never saw or knew of any dstainee abuse, Humiliation of detainces or anyihing out of the ordinary. On 15
Sepletrbet, 1 moved to Abu Ghurayb, The unit there, 519¢h MI BN, was not prepared (o receive us so carly. So they put us 10
work on the night shift from 2000 to 0800 in the morning, almost immediately, working around the dewinment in ntent. No
IROE had been given at this time.  Afier a mortar aflack on 19 September 20&3. we were then given the space in the building w©
rum the {CE. After the ICE was 10 a standard 1o work in, our shift was now moved to daytime bours to svoid any mote injury or
death during the daily evening sitacks. It wasa't untl a few weeks (date unknown) is when the IROEs were bricfed and signed.

I was not prescut for the first signing of the IROEs, howeyver, there was & change to them and » & was gIven
JIROEs then. Befo, ved inta the "hard® building, 1 sat in on interrogations wi
_ (97L/ 325th) mm (97E/ 325th). The majority of the interrogati
tehis, re were a few ti en EO o h i a gigo cal " i

to it in on huerrogations. The linguists we used wetc
used by the interrogators in when interrogating detainecs and
used repetitive questioning, used tbe sympatlfelic lechnique, an used the dircet approach, | never
natheard any of my team physically abuse or humiliaic o detainee. [n re 10 naked delainces: One time when
and 1 went 10 the Hard Site 1o pick up 2 detasnee o inlcriogate, we found the detsinee naked in the cell. The
ciaince was identificd as a high level official. The detaines was 1ot scared nor hurt, he was embarrassed because all he was a
shees that we provided hum for the interrogation, and thar tere was a female in the celt with kim and not having clothes.
Detainces wouid tell us that they were beaten when they were initially arrested and they would show us their bruiscs. We would
ask them if thcy were igjniu and offer 1o send a medic 1o check them out  Ofien titmes the detsinces that wers bealcn during
| Brrest were quite relieved that they weren't being abused at the prison. One detaince that 1 recall sdmitted to lying © us because
he thought that he was going Lo bcwacidm 10 talk afier be found out the we wouldn't hurL him. As far as the naked

deiainee ia his cell, we {(myself an askcd the MP (I do oot remember his name) 1o put his clothes back on. { do not
know why the detainec was naked. His clothes were not in the cell, we sctually waited about 10-15 minutes for the MPs 1 find
his clotiung, afier they said that they didn't know which clothes were his because they were all together with other detainces
clothing in a closet, we just got a sheet for the detainee to cover himsell up with for the intcrrogation. We did leave him with the
sheel when the inercogation was overThere were a quile a few others naked in the cell. 1 did aot discuss this with snyone )
bocause it was known that the dewainees were in their cells aaked, It was 3 call by the MPs w keep them naked in the cells.  This
occurred during the night shift when we i i ide nts. After we moved into the *hard® building, 1
cominued 10 Sitin on interrogations wi until | became part of a permancnt liger eam with
end linguist e Furce Protection Section - Tiger Team 2 (I ain not certain if team
was s of not) toan teader wag he was from the 519th. 1 did sit on intersogations with him at Umes as
well, bul for the most part | was wi everyday for at least one to (wo interrogations » day. 1 do know that she

used siress positions but after we signid the . she seized using those. 1 did not sit in on any intcrrogations with her when
she used 2 stress posilion,  Aficr the tiger teams became permanenhnd 1 would talk together about the detnince

and information he might koow. She wo t topether bet interropation pian Pased on any inforguation that 1 necded to know
and {ind oul. Never did | sce or hear o sbusing or humiliaung detainees in public. and | were
assigned 1o a group of detainces that were being in the “hardsite”. We were down there practically evel¥Bay.
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USE THS PAGE F NEEDED, ¥ THIS PAGE (5 NOT NEEDED, MLEASE PROCEED

STATEMENT OF H————— TAKEN AT

B, STATEMINT Lostasns) . ]
We would go dowa 10 the "hardsite”, request the MP the open the door for the detmines we wasied to intcrrogate and the MP

would bring the deisinec cither to the ahowey upstairs oo Lhe secund floor in the 'Ewmuewu on the MI Hold
[

side. We always prefesred the stircase but somelimed OGA would get there us. kjways bad e detainee
st down eitlier on the flooF on a chiair and Dever used stre3s positions then. We d o individual wiich was
the icader of the group, moro ofien than any other individusis. We aaked the M on duty lo strip him naked for
us for the inicrrogation, o this instance, for thiy detainee We were always in the . ver, once the inierogation was
done of when we led him out of the room, he was always, clothed. Never did he leave (bat room with noliuag on. Wewould .
slways ak the MP 10 escort the Setainee for us back and forth from his cell Io the interrogation mom, If we uscd solitary, it was

Vfor 2 shart amount of Lime, not more than 30 minutes in e hole, to scase the deisince because he was clsustrophobic. At
nd 1 would request 1o do an interrogation in the early moraing hours (0300-0400}, we only did ihis twie
would aiways stact off her jaterrogation with the direct approsch,

i the m n use love of
family end fear up Taild and other xpproaches, The delince that we inmerrog; {} am unsure
of the last rame, but if 1 1ee his name ot photograph 1'can pick bi authorization
when 1 lirst acrived at Abu Glurayb were Sleep deprivation and eating habits. We ¢could use sress pmm without the approval
of hightr. My team did not Tequest/conduci any slecp Geprivation of caling habit changes. ARer the JROEs were given to ut W
mid-Uctober(tinicframe 15 uncertain), we could no longet condug] stress positions without higher approvel. My eam followed -
the tcchnigues posied on the IROEs that were posied in the ICE.*:NG ay

the regulation and what was taught &t AIT When the JROES came oul m ] he:};.w had

thal she slways followed what was iw
$0 £ign them and then they weit

posied in the Intercogation C ICE). A 1ean from Guanmaamo Bay, C i 4o asscay the operations mun al
Abu Ghurayb. Shortly alic from it ant a3 ous section .
Other the Force were (9TE] :

(57E). oihers that 1 do not recall ar thil tume. wlerpretsr od osl ohen wal

kad to Oved by the ssction ieader and then higher. § do not know who approved il [rom highel.

one who wrote Uic inlcrrogation plan with the wechniques she would be using. If we wanied to use techiuh .
commanding approval a memoerandwm had 1o writiern, explaining why and what rype of information ke could provide, it had to be
given 10 our scction leader and he then took care of it fram that point on. When we first staried , intervugation plany wese not

really donc ahead of tume. The analyst would talk to the intcrrogaier and & 1d them what we had found oul, the
interrogator would write down the pian right before going inlo the booth and | would plan and prepare the day
befure an intcrrogation and get Lhe interrogation plan signed off the morning ol know w ff on the plan, aiter
our seciion cmember one Line | had to wke ao inicrrogation pian for signature was not around 30

| gave ity o sign | do not remember whal Lechmques were
I don't create or Wrile a0y inwrrogation reparts of plans. ) only brought itto
sthiz ime slot to get ing an nterrogation. 1 do oot recall who \he pgath specific to, by reviewed
tie plan and sipned off on it 1 then rowroed it 10 our 1cam lead " 1 can't aay for sure thal (he operaions

petsonncl kncw of our detaisee being interrogated naked. 1 can oaly akiume since they had 10 sign dae inlerroganion pian. |
deparicd Abu Ghursyb late October to carly Roverober soon after SDL PAPPAS movod in &cnmnmuy. We would see COIL.

an that particular intercogation pisi.
geth we were on 3

Pzdnpas almost everyday walkiog sround in our LSA where worked and in the ICE area. le never spoke fo us. |
did walk the has ery day bul I do not remember secing tainces olber than sl the beginning whon | went to the
hard site wit : Ay {ar ns humiljat ¢. | do not know of any incident other than wicn we had. then)
siripped na opation only. would somclimes come by And check on us when we werd
intcrrogaung. culd alzo come by and che€k to sec if everything was okay of if we nceded hina For saything. The
only time that | saw any officers down in the hard site is when they were doing their “tours” to the Red Crasy or visiting hifh
ranking personnci. | would see the CPT of the MP company down there most ofien. | know we had obscrvers after we tuitt the
interropation booths. 1 do not know who was there because \be booth bad a one way mirrer, We went off of the JIROE,
Fand the ICE leaderahip, directed to us. 1 don't know who dirccted them to give it to us. In e beginning, » iot of the
techninues aud approaches were discussed verbally between people and approvals were given that way (but I can't nan
specilicully who would wlk w whom). Laler oo, they siarted buckling down on & iol. lsdu not koow sieciﬂcnlly whmner
being read the nterrogation !:chniﬁucs feom the power point alidc, 1 am not sure what wechaique the naked intcrropations fell
uader. It doesn't seem Jike it would fall under any of the IROEs Jisicd. 1 neves st in on an inierro jon whete a detsinoe Was
told to sit agaimst the wall. | never saw oF wis aware of any deuainee abuse, humillstion, phoos of detatoecs or videos bf
detainees. | had redeployed by the ume CID began their wvesugation on Lhe sbuse. Tee only CID investigution 1 reinomber was
the moner attack. | do not know of sny other detainges being intcrrogated neked, 1 only heard rumors aof it being

AhyIhing ¢lse you wish r gatement?
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NOT U

AFFIDAWIT

|.% . HAVE READ OR HAYE HAD READ T ME THIS STATENTNT
WILCH BETINS ON PAGE 1. AND E PaGE 7 . 1 FULLY LNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF TRE ENTIE STATEMENT MADE

BYME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. LHAVE (NITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE ROTIOM OF EACH PAGE CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. J HAVE MADE THis
STATEMENT FRECLY WiTHOUT HOPE CF BENEFIT DR REWARD, WITHGUT THREAT OF PUN B WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE, OR UNUAWT UL INDUCEMENT.
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05 JUNE 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD:

IEU—

On 05 June I condycted a telephonic interview of M The below
statement is what told me based on the questions I asked her. She is

currently reviewing the statement and will send me a signed copY.

Ay -

1 was assigned to Camp Cropper right after 4 July 2003. The units already at Camp
Cropper when | ammived were from $19th M1 BN and the 325th MI BN. Personnel in
charge of erations at Camp Cropper wer {company commander)
and (interrogation operations). At Camp Cropper id didn't receive any
Interrogation Rules of Engagement (IROEs). 1had been deploved 1o GTMO before and
so 1 knew the IROEs. 1 sat in on some interrogation with We
always conducted out interrogation outside in a-tenl. While st Camp Cropper, 1 never
saw or knew of any detainee abuse, Humiliation of detzinees or anything out of the
ordinary. On 15 September, 1 moved to Abu Ghraib. The unit there, 519th MI BN, was
not prepared to rcceive us. When | first arrived at Abu Ghraib, I did pot receive any
[ROE training. We received the training after we moved into the hard site sometime after
the moriar attack. The 325th was plac d on the ni i 00 1o 2000 hours. I sat

. Owr linguists wer
es mainly used by the mierrogators in my team
etail when interrogating the
used the sympathetic

whcgm:md 1 went to the Hard Site to pick up & detainee to interrogate, we
found ThE detainec naked in the cell. The detaince was identified as a high lovel official.
The detainee was not scared nor hurl, he was embarrassed because all hhe was a sheet that
we provided him for the interrogation, and that there was a fernale in the cell with him
and not having clothes. Detamnees would tell us that they were beaten when they were
initially arrested and they would show us their broises. We would ask them if they were
in pain and offer to send a medic to check them out. Often times the detainees that were
beaten during arrest where quite relieved that they werent being abused at the pnson.
One detainee that I recall admitted to lying to us because he thought that he was going to
be beaten. We asked the MP (1 do not remember his name) to put his clothes back on? 1
do not know why the detainee was naked. The detainee’s clothes were not in the cell, we
actually waited about 10-15 minutes for the MPs to find his clothing, after they said that
they didn't know which clothes were his because they were all together with other
detainees clothing, we just got a sheet for the detainee to cover himself up with for the
‘interrogation. We did leave him with the sheet when the interrogation was over. Therc

detainee and us questionIng,
technique, and used the direct approach. I never witness or heard any of my
team physically gbuse or humiliate a detainee. In reference 1o naked detainees: Ome time
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were 2 few others naked in the cell. 1 did not discuss this with anyone because it was
kpown that the detainees were in their cells naked It was a call by the MPs to keep them
naked in the cells. This occurred in the night shift when we were still gleeping in the
\ents. Some of the techniques requiring higher authorization when 1 first arrived at Abu

Ghraib were Sleep deprivation and cating habits. We could use stress pofﬂ.ﬁﬂns without
" the spproval of higher. 1never sat in 0D &n interrogation where stress position was used
My team did not request/conduct any sleep deprivation or caling habit. Af@c'r the D_lOEs
were given 10 us in Late Sepiember, we could no longer conduct stress positions without
higher approval. My team followed the techniques on FM 34-52. When the [ROEs came
out in late September, we had to sign themn and then they were posted in the Interrogation
Conwul Element (ICE). This was around the time we moved our living ares into the
puildings. After the mortar amack on 20 Septembez, we were DO longer authorized 10
conduct interrogations Al night. On certain occasions we would request to do
interrogations in the morming (0300 or 0400 in the morning). Once the Tiger Team
Concept was implemented, 1 was assigned 1o the Force Protection Team 3.
was the section leader and other members were {97E),

and the interpreler was There was
also another individual from the 519th (1 do not recal his name). is

who 1 would pair. up with, She used the direct } § family and on
omé Or two occasions she interrogated a deninee paked. This
occurred in mid October. The technique had 1o be approv b on leader and
then higher. 1do not know who approved it from higher. the one
who wrote the interrogation plan with the technigues to be
the detaipee naked, we went 10 the hard site and requested the detainee from the MP
e detaipes was taken to the shower room ta be interrogated. We
asged the MP 10 stnp the detainee naked. Interrogating the detainces

ed was authorized only durin

Hd. When | first arrived, interrogation plans were not really done

ead of time. he analyst would talk to the inerrogator and after we told them what we
had found out, the interrogator would write down the plan right before going into the
booth. This changed once we implemented the Tiger Team. When s plan had to be
approved by higher, I do not know who signed off © jan. 1do remember one time 1
had tg take an in ion plan for signature and as not around so 1 gave
it sign. 1 do not remember what techniques were being requested 1
don't Create or Wrile any inlerTOgation Teports of plans. I only brought it todgR to
get it signed because we were on a strict time slot to_get into an interrogation. 1 do net
recall who the interrogation plan was specific to, but jewed the plan and
signed offon it [ then returned it to our team leader 1 can't say for
sure that the operations personnel knew of the detainees being interrogated naked, | can

only assume since they had to sign the interrogation plan. 1 departed Abu Ghraib laeto

early November right when COL PAPPAS was spending the majority of his time st Abu
Ghraib. 1did walk the bard site every day but 1 do not rememb ing naked detainess
other than at the beginning when 1 went 1o the hard site wi As farss

humilisting & detainee, 1 do not know of &ny incident other than when they were stripped
naked. would come by and check on us when we were interrogating.
would 250 come by and check to see if everything was okay. The only

used. The day we interrogated:

g interrogations in the cell. 1 wasn't the only analyst.
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time that I saw any officers down in the hard site is when they were doing their "tours" to
the Red Cross or visiting high ranking personnel. I know we had obscrver after we built
the interrogation booths. I do not know who was there because the pooth had a one way
mirror. We went off on the IROE and the ICE leadership gave us, I dont
know who directed them to give it o us. In the beginning, 2 lot of the approvals were
verbal (but I can't name specifically who would approve). Later on, they started buckling
down on a lot of stuff. T do not know why. After being read the interrogation techniques
from the power point slide, 1 am no: sure what technique the naked interrogations fell
under. I néver sat in on an interrogation where a detaines was told to sit against the wall.
I never saw of was aware of any detaince abuse, humiliation, photos of detainees or
videos of detainees. | had redeployed by the time CID began their investigation on the
abuse. The only CID investigation 1 remember was the ope after the monar attack. [do
not know of any other detainees being interrogated naked. 1 only heard rumors of it

that ] am not to discuss this with aniona.

being done. I was told b
to the Procedure 15, 1 will forward them to

If I ie1 ani e-mails pertaining

MAJ, Ml
_ Investigating Officer
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FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY

CITF7-TF-FAY 9 June 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

s GSMSANRIIAR c 5~
1. (FOUQ) On 6 June 2004, while conducting an interview DP
Commander, 72* MP Company, Henderson, NV, he idmﬁﬁ:ili

jous, wolder, pnit armorer who maintained a diary of abuse™
was not the unit armorer and served in Abu Ghraib for a
short period as an MP, her secondary MOS. She arrived in Abu Ghraib with the main

body of the 72* MP Company circa 21-25 May 2003. Within weeks of her arrival she
had a “nervous breakdown” as a result of shootings she witnessed during a detainec
cscape and riots. She was referred to the 581" Combat Stress Team, underwent

counseling and was reattached to the 400" MP BN at Baghdad Intermmational Airport
(BIAP). She redeployed with the 72" O circa November 200';*
“dviscd tha%ad been identified by the Press as
maintaining a diary of abuses (Associated Press Anticle-Anachment #1). She was

interviewed and confirmed she meintained a diary but neither observed nor documented
any detainee abuse. Subsequent to the Press interview the Nevada National Guard also

sent a team 1o interview her regarding the allegation. She agajg denied know, cdge or
documentation: of any ahusc.# dcscﬁbch
emotionally distressed and unstable. She was no longer in the Nevada AR.NG-
*rovided her last known comact data (home phone and next of kin (son) -
(Attachment #2). The undersigned atempied contact at her home phcmm
Yenngton, Nij confirm she had not observed or documented abuse. umber ha
been disconnected. The undersigned elected not to contact bier next of lm_

2. (U) POC is the undersigned.

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY
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cussinos Nevada National Guard soldier says she '
___cosnactus  reported no prisoner abuse
... SUBSCRIBE

By BRENDAN RILEY

ASSOCIATED PRESS

YERINGTON, Nev. (AP) - A Nevada National Guard

soldier said she complained after a prisaner at Irag's
Showblz Weskly  NOtorious Abu Ghraib prison was shot and killed

Le» Vagas Weskly  during a riot last year, but denied she documented

L3 Yeges Life , X
Hotal Resorts  BDUSE Of inmates by her fellow soldiers.

Spc. Donna Menesini, 49, told The Associated Press
on Friday that she was the "older female soldier”
who was mentioned during an Article 32 heanng into
pnsoner abuses at Abu Ghraib.

During the hearing, a special agent with the U.S5.
Army's criminal investgation command testified he
was told about a Nevada National Guard member
who was "afraid of her chain of command” and sent
documentation of prisoner abuse to her relatives,
according to transcripts obtained by various media
outlets.

In an interview at her home, Menesini said she never
documented abuses, bul did keep a personal journal
about her experiences in {raq.

"There was nothing to document,” Menesini said.
"They made it sound like | knew something harrible.
i | did know something horrible, | know | would have
told the commander and he would have straightened
it out.” '

"The journals | wrote are the journals of what | did
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during the day,” she said. "It had nothing to do with
-documentation because there was nothing to
document ... it kind of kept me sane.”

"| never got in trouble for keeping a jounal.”

Menesini, a grandmother of seven, was deployed to
Irag as part of the 72nd Military Policy Company,
hased in Henderson, Nev. The unit was stationed at
.Abu Ghraib from mid-May to early November 2003.

Menesini told AP that during her time in Iraq she was
going through menopause, which triggered an
emotional outburst after a June 2003 riot and escape
attempt in which an inmate was killed and several
others were wounded. Soldiers have sad the slain
inmate was about to attack another soldier with a
tent pole. -

“| had never seen bodies. It was really hard. | felt
bad. | called them murderers,” Menesini said in
describing her outburs! at feliow U.S. soidiers who
quelled the riot. "After | calmed down and saw ... like
the psychiatrist said, it was a flight-or-fight reaction
on my part.”

Menesini saw two military psychiatrists who wanted
to ensure she was fit for duty. She said she was
cleared for continued service, bul was shifted from
the prison to the Baghdad airport and later helped to
guard military convoys until returning home.

Menesini emphasized the difficully of going through
menopause during a six-month deployment in lrag,
where she encountered lemperatures as high as 120
degrees.

"i don't want peopie to think I'm nuts,” she said. "I'm
not nuts. Menopause is a very difficult thing to go
through.” '

Menesini said she never saw anything similar to the
humiliating photographs of Iraqgi prisoners that have
prompted internationai outrage.

Abuses of lragi prisoners by American soldiers at
Abu Ghraib - notorious as the site of executions and
torture during Saddam Hussein's regime - have
caused a major scandal and damaged the credibility
of the U.S.-led coalition.
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In all, seven soldiers with the 372nd Military Police
Company - the unit that replaced Menesini's .
company at Abu Ghraib - face criminal charges. An
additional six have received official reprimands,
which will effectively end their Army careers, and
one was given an official admonishment.

"We weren'l there to hurt people,” Menesini said.
"They were people that never had any power before
in their life. And now they got power, and they went
overboard.”

The top general with the Nevada National Guard
confirmed that Menesini had seen some "disturbing”
incidents, but that they did not rise to the level of
abuse.

"It's been way overblown,” Air Force Maj. Gen. Giles
Vanderhoof said. "Was there prisoner abuse? Did
she try to report it? And was she reprimanded?
None of those things are true.”

The Nevada National Guard has received no inquiry
into any of the state's guardsmen who served at Abu
Ghraib, he said.

"(Menesini) considers the matter closed. From
gverything | have, | consider it ciosed,” Vanderhoof
said.

Menesini, a Yerington resident, remains with the
guard as supply c'erk assigned to a Carson City unit.

AP newswoman Christina Almeida contributed to
this report from Las Vegas.

Irintable lext verson | Mad thig to a icend

Search terms highlighted: menesin

Las Vegas SUIN main page

Problems or questions
Read our policy on privacy and cookles. Adveriise on Vegas.com.
Al comtents © 1996 - 2004 Las vVegas Sun, Inc,

Nevada's Largest Website

http://www lasvegassun.com/sunbin/stories/sun/2004/may/14/051410406.html ?menesini 6/6/2004

AGO000407

DOD 000495






SWoRN STATEMENT
Fou una of this Sovre, 0 AL 1m5:-n-m-mhm

PAIYACY ACT STATEMENT
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PRINCIPAL PURPDSL: T o e DARRADIN nd iaw pelarcament wliicids wih mead oy which i lsrvemisom sy e accuroraly il
ROUTIME USES: Your pacial 3atUity P w5 wand 83 40 phdimnalwiamd 1 Swans &1 maificalen 1 tatiitaty lisg el retnaesl.
BISCLOSURE: Diaclasurs of youn il J0Cwrly mumher - vhh Y
1. LOCATION yr 3. QATE /1YY FaAdY 1. TME 4. FLE NUMAIR
oath RRC. Devens, MA : 2004/05/27 WSo

& 7, GRADEISTATUS
T LAST NAME, FIRST NAME, MIDOLE WA ey

3. DRGAMZATION DR ADDRESS _
Miliary Inwlligence Readiness Command, Fort Belvolr, VA

s,
e ) —— LT

am currently enrouts \o my DEw assignment a the Military Intelligence Resdiness Command (MIRC), Fort Belvoir, VA. lwns
the Cumnmlgcr of the 325th Military Imelligence (M1) Baralion (BN). East Wisdsor, CT, from 1 Feb 03 10 2 May 04. The
175th MI BN deploycd cnnuts 1o trag on 10 Feb 03. We conducied 3 home stanon mobitization al Devens, MA (A Co), East
Windsar, CT {HHSC), and waternury, CT (B Co), with roughly 180 organic MOS qualified soldiers when we aTived at Fort
Dix. NI. A Co deployed (o Fon Dix on or apout 17 Feb 02, and B Co and HHSC deployed about the enid of Feb 3. A Co
conlained Analysis Control Element (ACE), B Co coniaincd Counterinziligence and Interrogation azsers, and HH5C performed
wraditiopal headguaners funclicns and siff. While at Dix, my LterTogaions Teceived gentric, cookie-culter iraining oo the Code
of Condust, Law of Land Warlare. and Gepcva Convenuon, Isiamic, eaiks- pecific culural awarenels, A well & raditional
CTT. weapans gualificauog, eic. We did not feceive as mush lowerrogation specific rraining as we wanied than st the Nortbeast
Ay Reserve Imelligence Readiness Center [ARISC). 1 bad about 10-15 osganic MOS qualified HUMINT
Colleciors/Interrogasers (MOS 97E). four or five being qualified Sirategic Debnefors, The 325th MI BN wis crossed leveled
with approximatcly 140 personnel from 40 different units from 25 sLaes. The 325th M1 had ) {hres months eartier ffom
Fort Bragg where we bad worked with the 519th MI BN and the 525th M1 BDE, We sianed depi oo 27 Mar 03, but had 10
\eave about 40 troops at Fon Dix 10 finish their mobilization processing. The 325th had 303 soldiers when it deployed. On 27
Mar 03, A Co arrived i Kuwait and was ipmedistely atached (o the 302ad M1 BN, 205th Ml BDE, where ey remained until

interrogators wete assipned with Fachical HUMINT Teams (THT) snd, with the exception of coc soldier
who was assisting the Command because she spoke fluent Arabic. B Co and HHSC were located »1 Balad,
rafy, Were st p batialion operations. Io Jun 03, B Co moved to Camp Crwpger. Sometime in the latc Aug/early Sep @3
umeframe, afier the General Miller visx, my 97Es starung moving 10 Abw Ghray {AG) and were integrated inip iuterrogation
G. | visued AG ot three ocoasions. My firs. visTt was sometime in Aug 03, My uoderstanding al teat 4
{ the 516th MI BN was o charge. of wmcrropaucs operations st AG. 1 bada couple of conversations wi
1t how her micrTogators were downg e unerrogaten prece and soldier sccommodations.
was my B Co Commandet and lived t Camp Cropper. My second visit 10 AG was sometime in Scp U3 when | 28t in oo an
IBLEerTo, where we discussed the 1DieITOgaUGN facilsties, but pever di interTogation techniques. At that
ume, was i charge of the iDIETTOgAUDN OPETLIONS and no long d o come in from out
of oo where and | don't really know what he was. My thard visil was jater in Sep 03, the was killed
at AG in & wonar atack. was stifl i charge aod COL PAPPAS (205 i
o AG; although he § 2 f ume there. Ward was (hat ine 205th MI BDE weuld be moving from Baad to AG, I
nad discussions wi who resided al AG, abour soldies lssues because he had 3 good grip bn what was § A
ot with therm, but ) never any opcralional discussions with im. Our discussions also iovalved dissemination of finished
repoms. 1 pever saw any detaines abuse, nor did anyonc £vey repont it lo e, hor did 1 ever hear of such abuse. } oever saw any
unauthorized photographs or videos of detawnees, por did apyone ever Teport such photos/videos to me, ner did 1 hear of any such
pheto or videos. During my visits 1o AG, | saw deiawnees dressed -normal Arab® dress, who were housed in open, wired areas,
in tents. 1 walked through the “hard site” on one occasion on tour. All the detainees | saw were fully cloghed cither in their J
personal clothing or prison clothes. | never saw any naked getainee and | never heard of any incidents that deiainees were stripped
{or humiliaion purposes. | Dever saw any miliary workang dogs, nor did 1 ever hear of dops being used ig for o jon

scs. | Was DEVET aware thal there were dogs at AG. | did pol know Specialisty
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STATEMENT OF m _tagwar  _Devens, MA

can not remember. worked for COL PAPPAS within the Interrogat

me not 1o disetss delails ot this Inquiry with any:
smcmcm.MIHHHHIHIHIHIHIH!HHHHIHHH!Il!IIHHHHIHH

!IIHIHIIIHIIHIIIIIIIIIIHHIH!IIIIHIII/IHHHHHHIII!HEND OF STA

STATEMENT (Coutiver! :
ry well, and knew ticm by sight, but not commep! oa their character.
photograph 23 MARE4" ﬁ ﬁ al 97E cross-leveied 1o the

The soldier in the lower left corner of digital

425th at Fort Dix from a reserve unit that 1
ions Operations Cell. MG FAY has ordered
onc not directly ipvolved ia this inquiry. 1 have pothing furtber to add 1o this
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AFFIDAVIT

WHICH BESINS DN PAGE 1, AND ENOS ON PAGE
8Y M THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. 1HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIBNS AND HAVE INITLLL
STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE UF BENTFIT CR REWARD. WITHOUT TRRFST SF PN EFLENT AL

WITNESSES

sdmeuied aathy, 1

RCANIZATION DR ADDRESS

I . HAVE READ O HAYE MAD REAQ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
| FULLY YNDERSTAND THE CONTINTS OF THE ENTIAE STATEMEKRT MADE
£0 THE BOTTOM OMFACH PAGE CONTANING THE STATEMENT. 1HAVE MADE THIS

T CoFROWN WHTRSELC S UL PRI BUEN AL SAN

Subscribed sl swoen 1o bafore ma. & parson sutharized 3y law 1o

¥ Lpegnn AT A2y Sitmerea!

27 oayel May 2004
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SWORN STATEMENT _
For use of this form, see AR 180-4E; the proponant agancy is ODCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHORITY: Title 10 USC Section 301, Tive § USC Section 2851; E.0. 9387 dated Novembaer 22, 1543 ISSA).
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: Ty provide commat )lers and jaw enforceinent ollicials with muans by which inlormation may be sccuralely dentilind,

ROUTINE USES: Your socisl secunty numbaer is used as an gdditional/shernats mesne of identification 10 tacilitate filing and ratraval.
DISCLOSURE: Disclosure of youe social Bocurity number i voluntory.
1. LOCATION . 2. DATE YYyymmobl |3 TiME 4. FILE NUMBER
Metro Park, Alcxandria, VA 2004/06/04 ’l{{ 4
NAME, FIRST NAME, WIODLE NAME 6. S5N 7. GRADE/STATUS
E-S/USAR

8. ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS ‘
3401st Strategic Military Tutelligence Detachment, Gaithersburg, MD

9.
_WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

1 was a member of the Guantanamo TIGER TEAM (TT) which deployed {rom Guantanamo Bay, Cuba (GTMO) to Abu Ghraib,
Iraq from early October 2003 until mid December 2003. 1 am a US Army reserve solider assigned to the 34091h Strategic

Military Intelligence Detachment, Gaithersburg, MD. } was activated from January 2003 1o December 2003 and other than mY

\ime in lrag functioned as an analyst ig GTMO. My TT was \asked 0 train personnel in Abu Ghraib on the GTMO TIGER
| TEAM concept. My team was led b and consisted ©

and myself. We arriv! al Aby GE;E orca carly October J003 (exact date unrecalled) and deparied circa the
Tddic of December 2003. W were the second of rwo groups seft from GTMO 1o Abu Ghraib. Tne first visit included MG
Miller and focused on assgssi j ogation and detention Operaions in Iraq and formulating recommendation for :
changes/improvements. ere part of this first eam. Our team arrived about 2 weeks afier the first
had deparied 1o assess the slarus of implementation of MG Miller's recommendations and bow well the TIGER TEAM
was beipp assimilated into pperations. Almost immediately on arrival our tcam was split up operationally.

arked primarily with th and/leadership at Abu Ghrai and didn't get involved wi
inierrogations within Tier 1A and ] were assigned 1o onc or more of the five
intcrrogation 1eams and {or the duration ofeur time there did not work togeter rectly, We all were; however, hilleted together

and saw each other on a daily pasis. We ali worked on the day shift from “We convened ad-hoc meetings al least
every two to three days where we discussed our expericnces. obscrvations and recommendations and then we *briefed”
(discusscd) these Wi Al of ous observations/discussions concerned how well the GTMO TIGER TEAM
coneept was being iteprated or employed. We were not at Abu Ghraib 1o wcach intcrrogation, simply to implement the TT
concept. 1 don't Tecall our tcam ever discussing specific interrogation techniques cmpioyed, abuse, of unauthorized inlerragation
methods. My job was asan analyst. | worked with two different 1carms and totated between their analysts. Somctimes I'd
only a day with onc analyst and sometimes several. At times ] accompanicd the analyst (as part of the TT) imo intcrrogations and
at times | only belped focus and preparc the analyst prior to an interrogation. 1 didn't actively invoive myself in the intcrrogation
progess or preparation other than its link 1o analysis. | observed about 1-2 interrcZations per week, [ntcrrogations were
tonducied 1 the interrogation booths or the stairwell or showcr To0IM of Tier 1A. | did observe the interTORAIDIS providing plans
for revicw and approval before their interrogations. These went o . for approval. Shc would review, discuss as
nccessary with the interrogatof and then initial the plan signifying ber approval, I don't ever remember 2 plan coming back
disapproved. Interrogation techniques 1 observed included mild "fear up” and "ego down." These werc all verbal in namre
involved no humiliauon ar physical abuse. 1 never chserved delainees who were naked although I once heard from an MP (name
anrecalied) about a detainee in Tier 1B who had been stripped down and of anotber detainec who was often shackled in his cell
naked because he spread feces on himsell and/or ate it 1 pevet heard of saw anyone physically abuse 3 detaince. Sleep
deprivation was a techaigue | saw employed. It was approved b#mﬂ P ald not exceed a 36-48 hour period. I'm
nol certawn of the specifics as it was an interrogator responsibility but 1 4o know that there were limitations (NFJ) on this
technigues and it was also ased in GTMO. | never observed dogs in Abu Ghraib. They were used in GTMO during
in-processing. 1 think it was a *fear up™ techoigue. | had uo involvement io the ~ghooting incident.” | heard about it afier from
¢ the interrogators had been called io assist. ] never saw of heard about anyone 1aking photos in Abu Ghraib. The ooy
stress posnions | obscrved or heard about were 10 make & detainee stand and if be was uncooperative to make him sivstand/sit
repeatedly. On occasion 1 did see MPs and interrogators leuch a detainee but it was never abusive; usually a hand on 2 shoulder
cca::' 'l'ar«‘:?) 1o guide. Overall, my umpression of interrogations (iechnigues) at Abu Ghraib was that they didn’l differ much {rom
Q: Do you have anything clse 10 add 10 this statement

operatio

A: No. .
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STATEMENT O

9. STATEMENT {Continued!

NO‘T/"'“? O//o:,d&

Taxenat MelRo Peth oateol¥ Jed @27 s

e

BY ME. THE STATEMENT 15 TRUE. 1 HAVE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. {H

THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT €

WITNESSES:

AVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE

AFFIDAVIT -~
. HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD

b
WHIC F.BEGINS ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PA %

READ TD ME THIS STATEMENT
| FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
INTIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE

OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
OERCION, UNLAWFULAY FLIE AR UM AWELL HDL Rl

ASignature af Person

ng Sratemant/

Subscribed snd sweoin 1o befors me, o perscn authotized by law to

sgminister oaths, this _4th _ dey of June 2004

ctro Poark, Alexondria, YA

ORCANIZATION OR ADDRESS

fTyped Neme ef Person Ad!inis 1enng Oath}

DRGANIZATION.OR ADDRESS

UCM], Anicie 136

IN F PEASON MAKING STATEMENT

TAuthority To Administer Oaths)
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FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY

CITF7-TF-FAY 9 June 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

SUBJECT: Telephonic lmewic~ DIA

L ' 9 June 2 undersigned conducted a telephonic interview wi .
Mm.ﬁas deployed to Baghdad as a debriefer with the Irdgi
Survey group (ISG). "His team, comprised of both military (DIA) and Other Government
Ageny (OGA) personnel, routinely coordinated with CJ conducted debriefings of
detainees at Abu Ghraib. Their Points of Contact wcrtmnd two Scrpeants,
names unrecalled, who ensured detainees were available and brought to the interrogation
facility for ISG. All of the ISG debriefings he was knowled curred in the
interrogatioggi wn as “wood,” outside the cell b}ock#as never in the
Hard Sit:.*ncvcr observed or heard about abusc of detainces. The ISG
conducted "debriefings™ vice interrogations and no coercive methods were employed.
The Interrogation Rules of Engagement he was prov

ide ioned were compliant with
the Army FM and Geneva Conventions as he recalle ould not recall any

names (or nicknames) of his OGA co-workers.

2. (U) POC is the undersigned.

Lieutenant Colonel, USA

- FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY
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25 June 2004

THE FOLLOQWING STATE 1S BASED ON A TELEPHONE CONVERSATION
BETWEEHSJ, 28™ COMBAT ARMY SURGICAL HOSPITAL
(CASH). - ' '

* On 25 June at approximately 1500hrs, I phoned the 28" CASH to request a list of all
medical personnel tasked 10 support Abu Ghraib prisonhstatcd the 28" CASH
had no personnel assigned to Abu Ghraib but that they did suppo prisoners form Abu
Ghraib when they were transported to their facility to receive medical support. He

provided a list of all PAs or doctors assigned to the CASH form Mid November to Mid
December. .Document 1s attached.

Investigating Officer
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SWORN STATEMENT
For use of this form, see AR 180-45; ths proponat agency is ODCSOPE

AUTHORITY: Title 10 USC Section 401; Titde & USC Secton 2951;

PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provide tommanders and law enioreement officisls with means by which i

PRIVALY ACT STATEMENT
£.00. 9397 dated November 22,1943 [SSM).
ntormation mey be accuralely igentitied.

ROUTINE USES: your sorCial Secunty number i used as an pdditional/pltérnale means of identificaticn to tacilitate Tiing and retneval.
BISCLOSURE: i Diseloeura of your social security number is voluntery.

1. LOCATION 2. DATL (YYYYMMDD) 4. FiLE NUMBER

METRO PARK SPRINGFIELD, VA : 2004/06/01

6. 5SN

MIDDLE NAME

"ORGANIZATION OR
Titn Corp, with Duty Irag

¥ s

!

. WANT TO

 arrived at Abu Ghraib {AG)on 24 or 25 (v] In essing
{ROE and Geneva Convention, presented b
o a monthly basi

diffe til afier Saddam was ca n 14 Dec

mewe conducled interrogations in the sho

interrogation purposes. 1 did bear dogs barking as they were being uscd

ground. 1do not have any knowledge of OGA personne} do

I worked one Lime wi
Tecatl. | usually worked in the errogalion sites, bul OO QOC BCCA%
ich took down Sad cr Saddarn's capturc [ was moved 1o the Spec
] weat into Block 1A on pccasion Lo pick up or Ie
- rea or sairwell of 1A; we also used the “wood sitc” and the "metal site”,
1 did not see or bear about any instance of abuse or humiliation of dewinees. did not sec or bear about the use of dogs for
by the MPs to scarch cells the night of tbe shocting, bul
did not actually see them in use. 1 did not see or bear about detainees being stipped and kepl paked in cells, nor did 1 see o7 hear
about detainees having Lo wear women's underwear. 1 had heard about slecp man
allowed an hour or so slecp in 2 24 hour period. 1do not recall sieep management being used on any interrogation icam 10 which
4 from a vehicle and/or dragged on the

11 was assigned. 1domnot recall any instance of a detainee being thrown to the groun
1 was reassigned from AG on

11
Feb Bth 2004. Q: ls there anything you wish to add? A Nﬂj‘
M"-"//,:'Him.-'HHIH.'!H.'.'HHHHHIHHH.'.'HHHI;NI.’H.'HHHIIEN ATDMENT 5070

\\-

lv. GRADE/STATUS

v

MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

: consisted of orienation of the facility and trainin
] had to sign a siatement that [ had recej j
e o hese manthly sessions were presented b

We also recejved raining o
an told us that any fequest for measures lisied on the TROE would have 1o be tou
the iinc fof 2pp al. as initially assigned to the Detzinee Assessment Board for rwa days and thep assi

cmber.  One team

utherized interrogations.

on, | di
ial Operations Team, working

agement where in a drtainee would only be

g on the
ing on them.

1o work with [wo

ul wi

ruro a detainee.

Creenesepre ranesarpetet”
e
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ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING *ETATEMENT

THE BOTTOM OF FACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BFAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE WUMBER

MUST BE 85 INDICATED.
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STATEMENT O

g. STATEMENT {Continued!

TAKEN AT Sgﬂngﬁeld, YA  DATE

o 2004/06/01

WHIC
gy ME. THE STATEMENT 1% TRUE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. |
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION.

WITNESSES:

I HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE

UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE.

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

FRIDAVIT
_HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
LY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR AEWARD, WITHOUT
£y L AT UL S Lo b

ISignature ©
gunscribed and sworn 10 baiore me, aison authorized by law 10
une 2004

adrminister oaths, this 1

ringfield, VA

day 0

{Signeture of Person Administerng Dath)

Rgrrnistering Oathi
5 USC 303

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

TAuthorily To Adminster Oaths!
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SWORN STATEMENT
Far use of this {orm, set AR 190-45; the proponent agency is ODCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

AUTHDRITY: Titte §D USC Secuon 301; Titls & USC Secypn 2951, £.0. 9397 dared Novernbet 22, 1543 (SSHL.
PRINCIPAL PURFOSE: | o provir commangecs and lw prtorcement ol licials with means by whizh migimaton may be xeuid oy wentified.
ROUTINE USES: Yous 3008 SRCUHTY number 13 used &3 80 sdcisonallitarnate means ¢f dentification to taciktate [ing and rettiey
DISCLOSURE: Drselosare o1 YOOr Sotial SECUTTY TUTRE B VORI,
1. LDCATION 2. DATE (YYYrMMOD! 3 TIME . FILE NUMBER
DARMSTADT, GERMANY 2(])-1!05_1 152
DLE NAME 8. §SN 7. GRADE/STATUS
SPC

B. DRGANSZATIDN OR ADDRESS
302pd Wiliary 1olelligence Banalion, Heideloerg, Germany APO AL 09102

B
. WANT T MALE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNGER DATK:

[ arrived at Abu Ghraitr in mid October 2003. §am a 3GH and when | arrived at Abu Ghraib T was assigned as an Assistant
Interrogation Analyst 10 work with Interrogators. My focus was Extreme Fighiers. The first day we received a towr of the site.
We were shown interrogation booths, where CAMP Vigilant and CAMP Gapgdl i
Alyst worked with interrogaters, The interrogators i worked with wer
very interrogator had his way of using an analyst. Some allow 25k questions which were relevant 1o the
INICITOgA plan. Other inlerrogators did not allow you to ask guestions they just wanted you to take notes and do the rescarch.
We also reccived some general information on the Geneva Convention but no classes on it. We received the Interrogation Ruies
of Engagements (IROE ] a couple of iterations of the IROEs. 1 was not laught whal was acceptable or not acceptable.
B the section jeade iscussed it with us. T understood that | was not to louch a deainee. | remember
ff the dewainee (o the MPs

ane 1 n | was dropping oft 2 oclal fier an interrogation. | wenk upstairs (o TIER 1 to drop ©f
while stayed below to do something else. [ handed the detainee to the MP and they asked me if how come the
detaince wis In s e 1 (old themn that the detaince had been untruthful. The MP (I do not recal] who they werc just that he

was a male, not an NCO and had a brown T-shirt) ook the detaince and jerked him roward the wall. The detaince bit the railing.

detaince bad blood on his head. § was not aware what the MPs were aliowed g do.
s well and maybe cvch'fhcy reponed it to c%lhcrb
o] know what they did. This occurred sometime in Novernber aficr we (00

over escoriing of detainpecs. e | saw the MPs making two detainces do PT. ‘These two detainces had raped a boy.
The MPs could make them do MP but we were not aliowed No one cver suggesicd that it was okay for MPs 1o abusc detainees
but we knew they could use the necessary force hen deta) at out of costrol. 1 never saw or had any knowledge videos of
detainees or dogs beng used for interropations. 1 did see o always had a camera) take phatos of detainee
once. She took a photo of a detainte who was standing This is the only time | knew of anyonc taking
phatos of detainees. The MPs had cammeras ag Mo 1 knew photos were not allowed 1n the interrogation
arca but | did not know of the Isalation Area. :COs were there and they saw her so 1 just assumed they
aliowed to since the NCOs Wylhm : B There Were detainees delivered by Other Government Agencies (OGA)

bul | never dealt with them, Tall civilian with biack Goatee) dealt with them a lot. QGA never shared any infelligence
they ubtained from the detaine when they belonged tous.  There was a time % GAs went in‘to Lhe ceil
with weapons. | didn't notice the weapors until afier they had walked out. 1 notifie nd stated it was wrong.
Do not know wiat happened sfier that, We had a shortage of clothing for detainees. We did not have enough blankets, jumpsuits,
shoes, or other stems. 1 saw a naked detaines who was thrown in the black room (the Hole), The detainee was a troublemaker
and had gonen vialent with a female ME. 1 was told that the MPs policy when placing a detaince in the Hole was 1o put him in the
cell naked. 1 mever beard or was aware of any M1 persanne) tell MPs to *soften-up” or give “the treatment” 1o detainces. One
stressed posilion 1 witmessed orlly once was when we had a detatnee handcuffed to the floor but we only did it for a short period
and kept watch on lum. "We would check his fingers and hands io ensure he had good blood circuljuen. This wasgn foliowing
with 1he interrogation plan. When | first arrived, there were rumors of prostitution and hol bu jopped that.
Two of our soldiers were caught with hol and whey receivgd Article L35 d lost T
I didn't really koo ut his analyst w
nvthing else 10 add is statement”
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SWORM STATEMENT
Fo¢ st nf this Iem, zee AR 100-45: the prapenent sgucy i DOCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATENENT
AUTHOMTY: Tode 10 USG Sweven 2012 Tiite 5ySE Secton 2951; £.0, 5397 axind Noremies 11, 143 153,
PAKCIPAL PURPOSE: 1n provido commandals 30w anlorcament Dl houale wath FRans by wiveh mipemalns MY e accuainly wenlitimd.
ROUTINE USES: Your yacial yecunly rawier @ wisd 52 o aedionaljaitemats st ol (e ation 19 Inciiitare filing pad reimeval.
DLSCLUSURE: Dusciosute & your 2osidl secmdy sumbet 8 volALaIY.
1, LOCATION 7. LATE [TYYTMMDD 37T 4. FILE NUMBIF
BL.DG AT-5636 Gorham St. Fon Bragg, NC 28310 \ 7004/06/04 15

JDOLE NAME

. GRGANZATION CR ADORESS N . _
A Company, 519th Military Intelligence Battalion, 5250 Military Intelligence Brigade

[ ssnl 3. nnmEfSu'msE ,

9.

Counterintelligence Ageul who peeiunmed interrogauons. My team's initial mission upan my
and life suppon arcas 1o b
Priur o indtial operatons

our authorized limis conc

intcrrogation techiniques. Ceriain 1echnigues contained i the JROE had o bej
these technigues was the interrogalion plan, which had fo be done for every i
bad 1o be requested through the \BLCITOZAtion team chief 1o the operations ccl

included a dctaited propased schedule and justification. Ouoce approved the
11he 1eam leader back dawn e the inlerrogator. Someonc 10 the operations ¢

1he praper tinme. The 73ud MP's kept a three ring bmnder 1n cell bluck
instruclions we gave the MD's concerning detaiuces were ot execuled,
mierrugator moved 3 dclainec outside without shade tur an approeaimale

risterrognter tokd the MP puarding the detainee 10 look aftes his wetfare during that time.

changed L. ind and the wstrucuons wre net relayed 1o the releitf, nor cxecy

old.

our facikl cive other detainees from var
centrolized local
documentabon
nuer rogaliny anm

provide inetiigence

{OGA) official. Tae OGA then packed the detance 10 b
Wy yway. | was not sufe if | had beard carrectly unnl
am not sure i it was a joke or a true story.
cells” 1 biock 1A and allowing them to inlerrogale our detdnee:
cigars and liguur trom te OGA as gifts for lething Lhesc acuvities o<Cut. Duriny the course v

pxpencneing a supply shorlage and 1he Women's underwear were all that was available for the

Tactical HUMINT Teams. 1 departed AG in early Oct
HH.’IHHHHNHUIHHHHHHIHHIHHIIHHHHHHIHHHHHI

c1 imerrogaton operations for dewinees gathered during opera
wilh interfopator input, an Interrogation Rules of Engagement (IRCE). which establishe
ation techingues. Shonlky after my arrival to AG, 1was br
memorandum stating | understaod and would follow (he IROE.- The IROE i Irug was similar to-the ont
Afghanistan. A difference in the two documents was Hic IROE [or Irag was more detailed. This was done 0 preciude quesunns
concerning, limitaisuns. o ovy opinion, the IROE was ciear and adeyuately establisbed our left and right houndari
ed. The vehicle for requesting

i Steep Schedulz

The request

zation through
MP's who wer

suppused to easure Wi schedule was followed. 1do not knuw ihe methods the MP's usead to ensuie the Ustginces were awake ol
i v unknewn. On scveral octasions lh:J
ine of one such uccasion iu which 2
; cjown reastn, The

boulutcd the puard

<l would then tuke the schedule 1 the

cotmmand of the incident. | did not witness any abuse or mallreatment of detainees while 3t AG. 1 never dir
abuse.of maltreat the detainces, nor did ] ever bear of it. The MP's never offercd to abuse the detainces for e, no?
hear of them offering 1o da sa for othet MI personnel. After the Joint Interragation and Debriefing Center was established, COL
PAPPAS kept the 519th MI Bn 97E's and removed the S _YTB's trom the inlefropa
W
.'h’HH‘HIH.’HHHJ’HIHHIIHH}HHIHHIH

_WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLDWG STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

From the cod af Jul 03 t early Oct 03 1 was deplofed 10 Ahu Ghraib (AG), Itaq with A Company, St9th MiBn. 1
issi arrival 10 AG was Lo seLup the wor
sion VICTORY BOUNTY

rred the

sculded tor alfowing the incident 10 oLLur, Doz 1o twa monihs into our operation of inlerrogating U
ious detention tacilities in Irag afier it was
~atuze af tie Jetainee wansicrs, many detainees arrived withowt
‘ MI Bn and detainees those personncl
crnber. ere under inenst peessarc from
reponing and sm i methods and processes, 1o include i
11 interropation plans. On occasion nducted inierropations themselves. One
interrogation occurred at the requeal DT LW anchcz in =01 Mie night. 1t seemed COL PAPPAS was not'c
inleTrOEALION OPCTALIGRS and Was (nosc concerned with repotting than proper interrogation techuiq
03, [ overhcard someonc making 3 staicoient about i detance dving while being interropated by an Other Guverniment Agency
} g o g jocal tani. The taxi driver was paid 10 tike the
onfitmed the statement was made b
‘o house their detainees at
s a1 their disceetion. 1 heard rumn:ad
f interropation aperatinas | oree
recnived o detainee wearmg only pink underwear. Representatives of the international Cunumittee of the Red Cross werc prosent
at AG durmyg this incident. 1 did not request this to be done and was toid the reason far the woinen's atlire was the MP's were

detainees. 1 informed

iefed on the JROE and sipoed
used by the 519h in

ues. On approvimately 29 Sep

the AG facilily 1n “ghost

ected the MP's 10

tion facility and put them on
HNIHIIHHIHHHIHHHHIH!HI

‘PAGE!OF 5

am a 7B

incident and
rese delain

decited w make AG the

Were

LTG SANCHEZ 1
b actsal guestion

apericuced i

received

my chaio of
did 1 ever
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STATEMENT OF ——— TAKEN AT _______l!lho!l ... DATED 2004/06/04

9. STATEMENT (Continmd!
- DO YOU HAVE ANYTHING TO ADD TO THIS STATEMENT!

Q:
Al NOIHHHHHIHHIHHIIIHHIHHIIllIIIHIIIIHHIHIIH;'HHH/HHI!HNH
IIII!I!!lHIHIHHH_HIIHHH!END OF STATEMENT////

IfIl!HHIHHIIHIH!HHHUNHHHHHHHHHHHIHHHHHIHHII
IHHHUIIHIHHHIHHIHUHI!HI!IHIIHHIIHIHINIHIHI

. Ha H WAVE HAD READ T0 ME THIS STATEMENT
I FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTERTS [F THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

JONS#HD HAVE INTIALED THE BOTTOM QOF EACH PAGE
T THREAT DF PUNISHIENT. AND WITHOUY COERCION. UNLA

CK BEGINS ON FAGE 1, AND ENDS DN PAGE

Y ME THE STATEMENT 18 TRUE 1HAVE INFTIALED ALY
S1ATEMENT FREELY WiTHOUT KOPE OF BENLFIT (R REWARL, WITHDU

[Sgaztuse ¢f Person Mekmg Stetement!

Sybseibed snd ywers 10 befare me, & pelson authonted by haw to

WITNESSES
sdranigter oaths, 1 Ath_ deyof Junc

CONTAINING THE STATENENT. | HAVE MAGE THIE
WFUL INFLUENCE, DR UNLAWFUL MULCEME

2004

at Fort Brage, Nonh Carolina

{Sgne -d drwinie tarng Oath)
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!.pc 9GBI I

366-94-4697
B Co, 321 M1 Bn
Dallas, TX

1 understand my rights as read and told to me. 1 wish to waive my rights with the
understanding that I can invoke them at a later time if I so desire.
1 was assigned to Abu Ghraib (AG) on 15 September 03, after staging through Kuwait
and a shori-term assignment at Balad and the Cropper Interrogation Facility at Baghdad
International Airport (BIAP). During my train up time immediately after mobilization

© and ini-ial assignments in Kuwait and Iraq 1 did not receive any training or instruction in
Interrogation Rules of Engagement (IROE), the handling of pnisoners or detainees, or in
the Geneva Conventi ' ins to the-above. However during my assignment at the
Cropper facilit y supervisor and I had conversations about the do's and
don'ts of what we were allowed to do and what not to do in interrogations. Al the
Cropper facility 1t was well known that detainees who were brought into the facility
complained of beatings from members of Seal Team 5 and TF 20 personnel. While at
Cropper | did not see any instances of abuse or humiliation. These instances of beatings
were phatographed and documented bﬁ After [ was assigned to AG, as
part of my onentation and in processing, [ was given a pamphlet to read which contained
detailed instructions and definitions of IROE. This was later modified through a new
listing of IROEs that reflected various authonties required for approval. I had to signa
memo indicating that I had read and understood the IROE. I was assigned as an analyst

workigg in support of interrogations and later integygted into a “Tiger Team’
as in f the interrogato came shortly after wards. 1
elieve role to be that as a hason officer, but he was very instrumental in

getting better living and working conditions for the Soldiers (sports cquipment,
computers, etc). Duning the first month or so I was limited to observing interrogations
and taking notes. Lateron,asa Tiger Team member I took a more active role in the
interrogation of detainees. When I first arrived at AG, it was common practice to usc
slecp deprivation and slecp management with the detainees. 1do not know how it
originated or who approved it, but 1t just seemed to be common practice. It was also
common that the detainees on M hold in the hard site were initially kept naked and given
clothing as an incentive to cooperate with us. The detainees in the lent area were clothed.
1 am not sure how the decision was made or by whom to make it a common practice to
keep some of them naked. I felt it was a Ml decision, not a MP decision and seemed to
be made b in screening, Who was on an ego uip. The section I was in
seemed to handle the *“ash and trash” and we functioned more as secondary screcners 10
determine intelligence valuc.

My first interrogauon session was in Block 1B as brought to us by the
MPs and was wrapped in a sheet erc the interrogators, and
as the interpreter. About a weck later, affer the mortar atlack,

o naked, but clothed in 2
sheet, id it in the shower are

as the interpreter. Right
After this the second version of the IROE came out — the detainecs were no longer kept

participated 1n m second interrogation. This detainec W
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naked and sicep deprivation/slecp management had to be requested and approved. [
know that the MPs had started to get mors detainec jump suits and sandals flowing in
" shrough the supply system, where before the supply had been somewhat limited. During
this time I became aware of incidents of possible abuse of delainees, reported lo me
during inierrogation sessions by the detainces themselves. The first involved a Syrian
named Hussein. He informed me that one of the MPs who is 9mm pistol gnd byt
it 1o the detainee's head. The other detainee, an Iraqgi nam ried _
¢ of the interpreters for the MPs hit him. cutting his car to the extent that 1
: ches. I saw the injury ang asked the MPs sbout it and wag inf
detainec had falien in his cell. old me this while I was with
tol#z document it in his INCITOAtOTs NOWCS. 1do not know i
. was Totoriously bad in report writing. Another possibie incidence of abuse occ
immediaicly after the shooting incident.”1 was scheduled to have a night interrogation
session with a detainee we referred to as *Trigger” who was given a gun in his cell by
one of the Iragi policeman. When the MPs went to seize the gun there was a shooting
incident. For a time right after, it was chaos in the arca Iwercina
meeting in the mess hall and JJENEIERNR came in and jndic y needed every
available interrogator and analyst to assist and asked for “volunteers” (1 figured the Army

volunteered me). He indicated the .2 sense of urgency 1o get information about the
incident and get it tonight, id COL Pappas had given
us blanket approval for harsher methods for that night. ple of days later Wl

aid COL Pappas had instructed us 10 use whatever techniques we had to in order
“1o get the required information that night. We got o the cellblock area later and saw that
15 — 20 of the Iragi policemen had been stripped and lined up and were being
interrogated. The MPs showed us the cell where the shooting had occuried. 1heard a dog
barking and when 1 went towards the barking, 1 could ;iipu cell, interrogating one -
of the Iragi policemen and a dog was also in the cell Later ad a team

meeting and then went 10 interro e IPs. 15 interrogation
~ session as a training session with i “fear up" technique. |
d not see COL Pappas, ) icinity, other than secing

in the mess hall earlier.
The GTMO tcam did limited training for us — more discussions on intcrrogation
pmccduresFavc a class on the role of the analyst in interrogations. A
team from HUachuca came in after the GT. MO team and gave us three days of classes,
including Ruics of Engagement and the use of sleep deprivation and sleep management.
Our process for using sleep management was for the interrogalor (o request it in writing
and submit the request with the interrogation plan. The memo. would stipulate slecp and
wake schedules, meals, etc., and could last for no more than72 hours. Once it was
approved, a memo was given 10 the MPs showing the schedule. Ido not know how the

MPs kept the inees - ] supposc they went by the cells and yelled or noise to kecp
them awakeﬁommcmed that the MPs cou as done to them in
basic trainin ical raining, eic). 1brought it up mw:m the MPs
appeared to have no ROES of their own. The MPs seemed (0 no NCOs or officers
on duly at night. _
Shortly afier the shooting incidcmmold me that she had an uncooperative
detainee that she stripped naked and Walked from the conex area to the Camp Vigilant
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area. 1t was cold that night, maybe about 30 dcgmes.-l!lgc-md the
other individua! on the carpet over this incident and wanted both given an Article 15.
4 indicated he handled the matter himself. 1 do not know what punishment wis
given, but kmow that both were removed from inwrrngaﬁonmduli:s. 1knew al?ou_t a
previous incident involving two intcrrogators from the 519° that had been d.rmkmg and
went to get a female detainee from the 1B arca and made her remove her shirt. The MPs
saw this and reported the maner. The two were relieved from interrogator duties. We
had & change interrogator rules after this — when a female detainee was interrogated, there
had to be another female pres
It was common knowledge th
his special projects, working

used sicep deprivation and dogs while he was on

for COL Pappas after the capture of Saddam on 14

Dec. It would rol surprise me iﬂold the MPs how to treat detainees. 1 know that

he had toid the MPs that some of the tainces he was interrogating were “pad" — they
had used TEDs and killed Soldiers. 1do not know what he expected when he told the *
MPs that, but he might have been suggesting that they yell at them, or such things.
However, he might have known exactly what the MPs would ar woul him
use a dog on one other occasion (other than the night of the shooting). d 1
were inierrogating a fernale detainec and heard a dog barking. The female was really

*afraid of dogs and we had 10 return her 10 her cell. 1 went to ee what was going on and
sa:i I Eclainc: in his underwear on & matuess on the floor with a dog standing over him.
tain

as upstairs giving directions 1o the-MP, telling him to *1ake him back home’,
Was one O t 1 did not sce an interpreter in the arca, MP w
# {Photo 19 t 1 viewed is a picture of this incident)

130 our officc at times, every other day or 5o, about
etc. He also told us about dogs being used whil

MPs ysed to o the “doggy dance” sessions.
ﬂ nterpretet. ] was with him an
Paw them 80 anything out of the ordinary Wi

liked by the interrogators and inlerpreters and sccmed quiet and shy
interesting t2ctics a lot, but was not abusive. He used the “fear up" tec
thought all detainess were guilty.
ame 1o me one morming and said he had to 1ell me something. The night before
ad come into the office and took 10 the 1A area w him something. When he
got there he saw two prisoners naked and on the floor y were all
yelling at the detainees and making them crawl around on the floo
disgusted over the matter and left after a few minutes. 10ld
care of it. 1could not fin d went 1o tell
think I told him 1 was going to tell omething but not what it was about,
me and said he would go with me. T sﬁk: 1 in private, as 1 did not wan

a lot and

hear what 1 was tellin, I old bout the incident and that in the future if he
saw any MI personngl in the vicinity of anything like that, he should tell them to leave
immediately. ‘lid he would tell his NCOIC about it. He left and came back laer
and told me it had been taken care of. 1 did not {ell M1 about it, as MI was not in charge
of the detainees, the MPs were. 1 feit that by telling the MPs abaut it. it would be fixed. |
probably should have told Sabout, but felt that by tellin bout it would be
taken care of at the lowest level. In hindsight maybe 1 should have told someane in Ml
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about it. Within a couple of days 1 mentioned it [H so di This was
more in confiding in a fgend than reporting an inclden e three O us were close and
confided in each othe: ater heard that 1 had told-about the incident and
asked if I had specifically told about him. I think that [ mentioned that it was just three
MI folks, but did not name names.
Aftcr the capture of Saddam, our tcam was given special extended authority from COL
Pappas to use harsher techniques. We would still have to request authority by memo, but
COL Pappas would approve it. My team never did request any of the harsher methods.
Other than what I described above 1 did not see of hear about abuse or humiliation of
detainees. I did not see or hear about unauthorized photos or videos. The NCOs,
jcularly the section chiefs, did not condone abuse — this was cspecially truc ©
&1 did hear about one occasion in which an Iranian detainee was bitten by a dog,
Ut do not know the circumstances or who was involved.

ConcemingPhoto 23, File Mark 4: The individual Jeaning against the wall nexl lc-
is possibl who was part of the 325® but worked for COL Pappas at the

205" Headquarters. :
Q: Is there anything you wish to add 1o this statement? A: No
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SWORN STATEMENT
" Far uis of this form, 3es AR 190-45; The proponent agency is ODCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT BTATEMENT ’
AUTHORITY: Tit 10 USC Section J01: Tiue § UST Section 2951 E.O. 9397 dated Novembar 22, 1943 [SSN).
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provide commanders and taw enforcement officiaiz with means by which infarmation may be sccurately

JROUTINE USEB: . . Your soctsl sscudily Number is uped 85 B0 edditional/siemate means of identification 1o tecilitete filing #nd retneval.
DISCLOSURE: . Disclosute Bl yous social securify numbar 1s voluntary.
1. LOCATION 2. DATE [YYYYMMODD! 3. TIME 4. FILE NUMBER
Coroapolis. PA - ‘ 2004/05/2 \
i ODLE NAME 6. SSN 7. GRADE.'STEIUS

8. ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

B Co, 321 Ml Ba Dallas, X

9.
. WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

tirne if § so desir

1 was assigned w0 hraib (AG) on 15 September 03, after staging through Kuwait and u shori-erm assignment at Balad

and initial assignments ib Kuwail and lrag) | did not reccive any taining or instructiva in Inicrrogation Rujes of Engagement
(IRQE), tbe handling ol pnisxner the Geneva Convenliod as it pertains W the above. However dunng tmy
assignmenl at the Cropper facilit

were allowed o do and what not t

terrofations. At the Cro)

ussigned 10 AG, 23 part of my oricotation and in processing, | was given @ P:mglet 1o read which ¢
and defizitions of IROE. This was later modified through 2 new RO
approval. |had to sign @ memo indicating that § had rcad and und

support of intetrogations and luler inlegrated into a "Tiger Team”
came shortly afer wards. 1 b:lievcdh role 1o be thatad a

OFE. | was asti

83 in charge ©

| do not-know how it originated or who approved it. but 1t Just secmed o be common practice. It was also common that the
detainees on M1 bold in Lhe hard site were initially kept naked und given clothing as an incentive 10 pOpeTaLE with us. The
detinees o the tent area were clathcd. 1 am nol sure dow the decision was mads or by whom i mmon practice
some of them naked - 1 feltit was a Ml decision, not 3 MP decision ood secmed 10 be made
00 an ego tp, The sectivn] was in scemed to handle the “ash and trash” and we funclioned
dewerming intelbgence value 1 i rion session was in Block 1Ry i
wrapped in 2 shee were the interrogators,
r the mo/N8T ALK,

zgccond micrrogation.
id it in the shower area i . Right after this the
IMhe detatiees were no longer kepld Ueprivation/sieep management had Lo be requested und spproved.
the MPs had started 1o gel more detainee jump suss anu sandals Slowing in through the supply
pegn somewhat limited. Dunng s lime [ became aware of incidents uf possible a
nierrogation sessions by the detawees themscives. The first mvolved a Syrian
lied bis 9mmm pistol and put it 10 the detawnee s bead. The other detainee,
une of the interpreters for the MPs hit lum, cutng hus ear o Lhe ex
Ps about it apd was informed that e dewunce had fallen 1n his cell
docament it in his imterrogawrs poles. 1 do oot kn 4 o not
report g. Apnther possible incidence of gbuse pecwred immediately afier the shosung ingidont.
ight inlerrogation session with a delzinee we referred 1o a5 “Trigger” who was given a gun in his cell by one of the Ingi
the MPs went to scize he gup there was 3 s ‘
d | were in 3 mesting io the mess hall and
and analyst w assist and asked for -volunteers™ ¢ fig
af urgency 1o get information shout the incident and get it tonight
blanket approval for barsher methods for that night. A couplc of pas bad instructed us
whatever iechniques we had (0 in order to get the required information that night. We got 1o the cellblack area later

10, EXHIBIT ‘ 11, INITIALS OF P! MAKING STATEMENT
o PAGE } OF

the MPs and

inces, Teparied to me during
He i me that

came in und indicated they needed every available
indicated there was &
id COL Pappas bad gi

1 understsnd my :ﬁs read and told 1o me. | wish o waive Iy tights with the undersunding ihat [ can invoke them at a later
Cropper inierrogation Facility an Baghdad International Airport (BLA%’). During my tris up e immediutely after mobilization

v supervisor and | had ccmversations sbout the do's and don'is of what we
r facility it was well known that delainees who were brought

inin the facility compluined of beatings from members of Seal Team 5 and TF 20 persoanel. Whilc a 1 did put see any
|instances of abuse ar humiliation. These instances of beatings were photognphed and documented by fler | wis
AUCLICNS

as an analyst ing i
the iRIETOgALOrS!
. but he was very hsmmnhlm;enh;hmclr
living and working conditicns for the Suldiers {spurts cquipmenl, COMPULETS, etc). During the first month or 5o | was Liailed Lo
observing imterrogations and taking notes. Later on, as # Tiger Team membor 1 took a raore sctive role in the intesrupation of

detainees, When | first armived at AG, it was comfaon practice lo use sleep deprivation and sieep management with the dewiness.

screening, who was
wcreencrs (o

system, where before the supply had

ax scheduled l):: have a

hooting incident. For a time right after, it was chaos in the arca,

and the

10 keep

wis

sense
ven us
to us
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STATEMENT (Continuad)

3

role of the anaiyst

o &Ruhes o to request it in writin,
fur the nerro, r itin ;

r::r; wake achedul:??nulw r?l.c.. and could ll:t for no maore than72 hours. Once it was approved, a memo was given (o the M

We hud 2 change interrogator
It was common knowledge tha
COL Pappas afier the capture o
know that he had told the MPs that some of the detuinees be was inierrogating

things. However, he might have kno hat the MPs would or would not do. | aaw
(ather than the night of the shooting). 41 were interrogating « female detxinee and heard a dog barking. The female
wer o

saw me and | think Liold b i ‘
with me. | spoke in private, as [ did nol w hear what | way telhi
in the futur aw any MI personsel in of anything like that,

iraqi policemen had been stripped and lined up and were being inqcmrud. Th

tearn did limited traiging for us - more discussions on interrugation
in interrogadons. A team from Huachuca came in afier the GTMO

showing the pot know how the MPs kept the delainess - 1 suppose mtbylpqulhnq)dhqqrmizmhccp
them .-:Eakg nied ihat the MPs could do what was doae tn MWL basic Luinig {physml_umn&m). 1
brought it up that the MPs appeared 1o have no ROEs of their own. The MP3 seemed to have ao NCOs or ofﬁccnr
on duty at nigh ; .

fier the (ing iuciden:;”wld me that she bad a1 uncooperative detaines ipned nak alked [rom
the conex area fo the Camp Vigil ] 1
other individual on the carpet over this incident and wanted hoth given an Arnicle 15. o

1y was cold that mght, maybe ubout 30 degrees led! the
hand H

1 do not know what punishment was given. but know thal both were removed from interrogation duties. lmew aboul o
incident invalving two interrogators from the 519th that had been drinki and went 10 pet 8 female detainee from the 1B
made ber remove ber shirt. The MPs saw this and reporied the matier. two were relieved from interrogator duties.

¢ this - when a female delainee was intsrrogated, there had w be mnother fems
used sleep deprivation and dogs while he j
m on 14 Dec. .1t would not syrprise me i

imow what he expecied when be wid the MPs that, but be might have been tuuuﬁngll.:‘m they yell at them, or such

was really afraid of dogs and we had ber weni to se¢ whal was going an and saw a delainee in his underwea
un a mattress on the floor with a dog over him. was upstairs giving directions (o the ing b "uke um
buck home”. The delainee was one O id inwerpreser in the Area. The MP w (Photo t96

that | viewed 15 a picture of this incid rould come into our o Limes, ev 1l us about
delaliiees - who was sick, eic. i

w the "doggy dapce” sessions ‘ . it him and on
several occasions aid 1 oever s ; vut of, i well liked by
the interrogawns and interpreters and secmed quict and sh busive. He used

up" technigue a lot und thought all detainees were

c o mic ope moming and said he had (o il me s . i g the office and todk 1
3 10 show bkim something. When he got there he saw two pri u“l! there and they
were all velling at the detaj ing them craw) around oo e floor, €
aftcr a few minotes. 1wl I would take care of it, Icould oot
going o twell ng but not what

y 1l the ve immedisiely.
id he would 1ell his NCOIC abowt it. He left and came back later and told roc it had been luken vare of. 1 &id not el

Ml
. as M| was nnt in f the detaipees, the MPs were. | felt that by weliing the MPs about it, it would be fixed. |
probably should have tol about, but felt that by teiling @JJsbout it would be laken care g 31 le
hindsight maybe ] should ¢ someone in M] about it. Within. u couple of days | mentioned it i
‘This was moore in ¢ ing i a friend than reporting an incident. The three of us were close and ¢ i
heard that | bad wl about the incident and asked if 1 had specifically 1ald about him. [ think that ] mentioned tha just
three Ml folks, but mamne names. Aficr the capture of Saddam, ous leam was given special exiended authorily from CoL r

Pappus 1o use harsher techniques. We would still have o request authority by memo, but COL Pappas would approve it. My
never did request any of the harsher metbods. Other than what | descri above 1 did pot sce or hear abow abuse or humiliation of
detainees. | did not see or hear al ized photos or videos. The NCOs, particularly the section chiefs, did not condone

abuse - this was cspecially true of

I did hear about one vccasion in which an lranian detainee was bitlen by a dog
£ circums Jolved. Coocerning Photo 23, File Matk 4: The individual leaning against the w
is possibl who was part of the 325k but worked for COL Pappas at the 205th Headquancrs.
thing you is stsement? A N

showed us the cel] where the

ourred, [ heard a dog barking and when | barking, | could scqillin a cell, interragating une of
d 2 dog was also in the cell. Laweron ad ' weat o inleriogate onc of
ised this interrogazion sessi ; ! 2 how WN *fear up
¢ COL Pappis, ‘ i sceing in the mess ball

Mm\re a class on the
fteam days of classes, -

e vation and 1. Our process for using slecp management
Engagement and the use of smasmi‘; m:'ﬂﬁ?nﬂmmwm plan, The memo would stipulate sicep

3 special Br‘u&m. working direcdy for
1ol the M w L0 treal detainees. |
" - they had used 1EDs and killed Soldiers.

use a dog on onc other occasion

buut the incident

Ps

team

.
all
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STATEMENT O

0. STATEMENT (Centinued]

™~

e

Taken AT _Coroapolis, PA paTED 2004/05/25

WITNESSES:

WHICPRBEGING ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE
BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS5 TRUE. | HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS ARD HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
TATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT

N, UNLAWFLL INFLUENCE, OR UNLAWFU

CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | MAVE MADE THIS 5
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCIO

. HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
Y UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

{Signature of Perso king Siarement)

Subscribed and sworn 1o belote me, B pefsan authorized by law 10
ndminister oaths, this 25  dayof May 2004

s (lorea #)c—h‘\ PA
T

OAGANIZATION DR ADDRESS

stering Oath)

UCM], ARTICLE 136

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

tauthority To Admunister Qaths}
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AND WITHOUT COERCION. LNICAWFLL, INFLUENCE . OR LINLAWYF UL IMOUCEMENT.
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